

12 NCAC 09A .0101 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

CHAPTER 09 - CRIMINAL JUSTICE EDUCATION AND TRAINING STANDARDS

**SUBCHAPTER 09A - CRIMINAL JUSTICE EDUCATION AND TRAINING STANDARDS
COMMISSION**

SECTION .0100 - COMMISSION ORGANIZATION AND PROCEDURES

12 NCAC 09A .0101 LOCATION

The North Carolina Criminal Justice ~~Standards Division~~ Education and Training Standards Commission is established in the Department of Justice and is located ~~in the Old Education Building, 114 West Edenton Street,~~ at 1700 East Tryon Park Drive, in Raleigh, North Carolina. The mailing address is:

North Carolina Criminal Justice Standards Division
~~Education and Training Standards Commission~~
Post Office Drawer 149
Raleigh, North Carolina 27602
Telephone ~~(919)716-6470~~ (919)661-5980

*History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-3; 17C-6;
Eff. January 1, 1981;
Amended Eff. November 1, 1998; August 15, 1981;
Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,
~~2019.~~ 2019.
Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0102 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0102 PURPOSE**

4 The purpose of the commission is to raise the level of competence within the criminal justice community by:

- 5 (1) Establishing minimum standards for employment and retention of criminal justice personnel;
- 6 (2) Establishing minimum standards for the training and education of criminal justice personnel;
- 7 (3) Promoting the planning and development of a systematic career development program for criminal
8 justice professionals by providing and encouraging advanced or specialized training, education, and
9 certification;
- 10 (4) Planning and promoting the development and improvement of a comprehensive system of education
11 and training in the administration of criminal justice;
- 12 (5) Conducting and stimulating research and planning, by public and private agencies, designed to
13 improve education and training in the administration of criminal justice;
- 14 (6) Studying the recruitment, selection, education and training of criminal justice personnel and
15 recommending improvements in such methods; and
- 16 (7) Maintaining liaison among local, state, and federal agencies with respect to criminal justice
17 education and training.

18
19 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-1; 17C-6;*

20 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

21 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
22 *~~2019~~ 2019;*

23 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0103 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0103 DEFINITIONS**

4 The following definitions apply throughout Subchapters 12 NCAC 09A through 12 NCAC 09F:

- 5 (1) "Active Duty Military" means full-time duty in the active military service of the United States. Such
6 term includes full-time training duty, annual training duty, and attendance while in the active
7 military service at a school designated as a service school by law or by the Secretary of the military
8 department concerned. Such term does not include full-time National Guard duty.
- 9 (2) "Agency" or "Criminal Justice Agency" means those state and local agencies identified in G.S. 17C-
10 2(2).
- 11 (3) "Alcohol Law Enforcement Agent" means a law enforcement officer appointed by the Secretary of
12 the Department of Public Safety as authorized by G.S. 18B-500.
- 13 (4) "Chief Court Counselor" means the person responsible for administration and supervision of
14 juvenile intake, probation, and post-release supervision in each judicial district, operating under the
15 supervision of the Department of Public Safety, Division of Juvenile Justice.
- 16 (5) "Commission" means the North Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards
17 Commission.
- 18 (6) "Commission of an offense" means a finding by the North Carolina Criminal Justice Education and
19 Training Standards Commission, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09A .0201, or equivalent regulating body
20 from another state that a person performed the acts necessary to satisfy the elements of a specified
21 criminal offense.
- 22 (7) "Convicted" or "Conviction" means the entry of:
23 (a) a plea of guilty;
24 (b) a verdict or finding of guilt by a jury, judge, magistrate, or other adjudicating body,
25 tribunal, or official, either civilian or military; or
26 (c) a plea of no contest, nolo contendere, or the equivalent.
- 27 (8) "Criminal Justice Officer(s)" means those officers identified in G.S. 17C-2(3).
- 28 (9) "Criminal Justice System" means the whole of the State and local criminal justice agencies described
29 in Item (2) of this Rule.
- 30 (10) "Agency Head" means the chief administrator of any criminal justice agency, and specifically
31 includes any chief of police or agency director. "Agency Head" also includes a designee appointed
32 in writing by the Agency Head.
- 33 (11) "Director" means the Director of the Criminal Justice Standards Division of the North Carolina
34 Department of Justice.
- 35 (12) "Division" means the Criminal Justice Standards Division of the North Carolina Department of
36 Justice.

- 1 (13) "Educational Points" means points earned toward the Professional Certificate Programs for studies
2 completed, with passing scores achieved, for semester hour or quarter hour credit hours awarded
3 from colleges or universities accredited by the Department of Education of the state in which the
4 institution is located, from an accredited body recognized by either the U.S. Department of
5 Education or the Council for Higher Education Accreditation, or from the state university of the
6 state in which the institution is located.
- 7 (14) "Enrolled" means that an individual is currently actively participating in an on-going presentation
8 of a Commission-certified basic training course that has not concluded on the day probationary
9 certification expires. The term "currently actively participating" as used in this definition means:
10 (a) for law enforcement officers, that the officer is attending an approved course presentation
11 averaging a minimum of 12 hours of instruction each week; and
12 (b) for Department of Public Safety, Division of Juvenile Justice personnel, that the officer is
13 attending the last or final phase of the approved training course necessary for satisfying the
14 total course completion requirements.
- 15 (15) "High School" means an educational program that meets the compulsory attendance requirements
16 in the jurisdiction in which the school is located.
- 17 (16) "In-Service Training" means all training that must be completed, pursuant to this Chapter, with
18 passing scores achieved, by all certified law enforcement officers during each full calendar year of
19 certification.
- 20 (17) "In-Service Training Coordinator" means the person designated by a Criminal Justice Agency head
21 to administer the agency's In-Service Training program.
- 22 (18) "Lateral Transfer" means the employment of a criminal justice officer by a Criminal Justice Agency
23 based upon the officer's special qualifications or experience, without following the usual selection
24 process established by the agency for basic officer positions.
- 25 (19) "Law Enforcement Code of Ethics" means the code adopted by the Commission on September 19,
26 1973, that reads as follows:

27 As a law enforcement officer, my fundamental duty is to serve the community; to safeguard lives and property; to
28 protect the innocent against deception, the weak against oppression or intimidation, and the peaceful against violence
29 or disorder; and to respect the constitutional rights of all to liberty, equality, and justice.

30 I will keep my private life unsullied as an example to all, and will behave in a manner that does not bring discredit to
31 me or to my agency. I will maintain courageous calm in the face of danger, scorn, or ridicule; develop self-restraint;
32 and be constantly mindful of the welfare of others. Honest in thought and deed both in my personal and official life, I
33 will be exemplary in obeying the law and the regulations of my department. Whatever I see or hear of a confidential
34 nature or that is confided to me in my official capacity will be kept ever secret unless revelation is necessary in the
35 performance of my duty.

36 I will never act officiously or permit personal feelings, prejudices, political beliefs, aspirations, animosities or
37 friendships to influence my decisions. With no compromise for crime and with relentless prosecution of criminals, I

1 will enforce the law courteously and appropriately without fear or favor, malice or ill will, never employing
2 unnecessary force or violence and never accepting gratuities.

3 I recognize the badge of my office as a symbol of public faith, and I accept it as a public trust to be held so long as I
4 am true to the ethics of the police service. I will never engage in acts of corruption or bribery, nor will I condone such
5 acts by other police officers. I will cooperate with all legally authorized agencies and their representatives in the pursuit
6 of justice.

7 I know that I alone am responsible for my own standard of professional performance and will take every reasonable
8 opportunity to enhance and improve my level of knowledge and competence.

9 I will constantly strive to achieve these objectives and ideals, dedicating myself before God or by affirmation to my
10 chosen profession law enforcement.

11 (20) "Juvenile Court Counselor" means a person responsible for intake services and court supervision
12 services to juveniles under the supervision of the Chief Court Counselor.

13 (21) "Juvenile Justice Officer" means a person designated by the Secretary of the Department of Public
14 Safety, Division of Juvenile Justice to provide for the care and supervision of juveniles placed in
15 the physical custody of the Department.

16 (22) "Law Enforcement Officer" means an appointee of a Criminal Justice Agency, an agency of the
17 State, or of any political subdivision of the State who, by virtue of his or her office, is empowered
18 to make arrests for violations of the laws of this State. Specifically excluded from the title "Law
19 Enforcement Officer" are sheriffs and their sworn appointees with arrest authority who are governed
20 by the provisions of G.S. 17E.

21 (23) "Law Enforcement Training Points" means points earned toward the Law Enforcement Officers'
22 Professional Certificate Program by successful completion of Commission-approved law
23 enforcement training courses. Twenty classroom hours of Commission-approved law enforcement
24 training equals one law enforcement training point.

25 (24) "LIDAR" is an acronym for "Light Detection and Ranging" and means a speed-measuring
26 instrument that electronically computes, from transmitted infrared light pulses, the speed of a vehicle
27 under observation.

28 (25) "Local Confinement Personnel" means any officer, supervisor, or administrator of a local
29 confinement facility in North Carolina as defined in G.S. 153A-217; any officer, supervisor, or
30 administrator of a county confinement facility in North Carolina as defined in G.S. 153A-218; or
31 any officer, supervisor, or administrator of a district confinement facility in North Carolina as
32 defined in G.S. 153A-219.

33 (26) "Misdemeanor" means those criminal offenses not classified under the laws, statutes, or ordinances
34 as felonies. Misdemeanor offenses are classified by the Commission as follows:

35 (a) "Class A Misdemeanor" means a misdemeanor committed or omitted in violation of any
36 common law, duly-enacted ordinance, or criminal statute of this State that is not classified
37 as a Class B Misdemeanor pursuant to Sub-item (24)(b) of this Rule. Class A Misdemeanor

1 also includes any act committed or omitted in violation of any common law, duly enacted
2 ordinance, criminal statute, or criminal traffic code of any jurisdiction other than North
3 Carolina, either civil or military, for which the maximum punishment allowable for the
4 designated offense under the laws, statutes, or ordinances of the jurisdiction in which the
5 offense occurred includes imprisonment for a term of not more than six months. Excluded
6 from "Class A Misdemeanor" criminal offenses for jurisdictions other than North Carolina
7 are motor vehicle or traffic offenses designated as misdemeanors under the laws of other
8 jurisdictions or duly enacted ordinances of an authorized governmental entity, with the
9 exception of the offense of impaired driving that is included herein as a Class A
10 Misdemeanor if the offender could have been sentenced for a term of not more than six
11 months. Also included herein as a Class A Misdemeanor is the offense of impaired driving,
12 if the offender was sentenced under punishment level three G.S. 20-179(i), level four G.S.
13 20-179(j), or level five G.S. 20-179(k). Class A Misdemeanor shall also include acts
14 committed or omitted in North Carolina prior to October 1, 1994, in violation of any
15 common law, duly enacted ordinance, or criminal statute of this State for which the
16 maximum punishment allowable for the designated offense included imprisonment for a
17 term of not more than six months.

18 (b) "Class B Misdemeanor" means an act committed or omitted in violation of any common
19 law, criminal statute, or criminal traffic code of this State that is classified as a Class B
20 Misdemeanor as set forth in the Class B Misdemeanor Manual as published by the North
21 Carolina Department of Justice, incorporated herein by reference, and shall include any
22 later amendments and editions of the incorporated material as provided by G.S. 150B-21.6.
23 The publication is available from the Commission's website:
24 [http://www.ncdoj.gov/getdoc/60bb12ca-47c0-48cb-a0e3-6095183c4c2a/Class-B-](http://www.ncdoj.gov/getdoc/60bb12ca-47c0-48cb-a0e3-6095183c4c2a/Class-B-Misdemeanor-Manual-2005.aspx)
25 [Misdemeanor-Manual-2005.aspx](http://www.ncdoj.gov/getdoc/60bb12ca-47c0-48cb-a0e3-6095183c4c2a/Class-B-Misdemeanor-Manual-2005.aspx). Class B Misdemeanor also includes any act committed
26 or omitted in violation of any common law, duly enacted ordinance, criminal statute, or
27 criminal traffic code of any jurisdiction other than North Carolina, either civil or military,
28 for which the maximum punishment allowable for the designated offense under the laws,
29 statutes, or ordinances of the jurisdiction in which the offense occurred includes
30 imprisonment for a term of more than six months but not more than two years. Excluded
31 from this grouping of "Class B Misdemeanor" criminal offenses for jurisdictions other than
32 North Carolina, are motor vehicle or traffic offenses designated as being misdemeanors
33 under the laws of other jurisdictions with the following exceptions: Class B Misdemeanor
34 includes the following:

35 (i) either first or subsequent offenses of driving while impaired if the maximum
36 allowable punishment is for a term of more than six months but not more than two
37 years;

- (ii) driving while license permanently revoked or permanently suspended;
- (iii) those traffic offenses occurring in other jurisdictions which are comparable to the traffic offenses specifically listed in the Class B Misdemeanor Manual; and
- (iv) an act committed or omitted in North Carolina prior to October 1, 1994, in violation of any common law, duly enacted ordinance, criminal statute, or criminal traffic code of this State for which the maximum punishment allowable for the designated offense included imprisonment for a term of more than six months but not more than two years.
- (27) "Qualified Assistant" means an additional staff person designated by the School Director, pursuant to Rule 09B .0201 of this Chapter, to assist in the administration of a course when an institution or agency assigns additional responsibilities to the certified School Director during the planning, development, and implementation of a certified course.
- (28) "Radar" means a speed-measuring instrument that transmits microwave energy in the 10,500 to 10,550 MHZ frequency (X) band, the 24,050 to 24,250 MHZ frequency (K) band, or the 33,400 to 36,000 MHZ (Ka) band and operates in either the stationary or moving mode.
- (29) "School" means an institution, college, university, academy, or agency that offers criminal justice, law enforcement, or traffic control and enforcement training for criminal justice officers or law enforcement officers. "School" includes the criminal justice training course curriculum, instructors, and facilities.
- (30) "School Director" means the person designated by the sponsoring institution or agency to administer the school, pursuant to Rule 09B .0201 of this Chapter.
- (31) "Speed-Measuring Instruments" (SMI) means those devices or systems, including ~~RADAR, Time-Distance,~~ RADAR and LIDAR, approved under authority of G.S. 17C-6(a)(13) for use in North Carolina in determining the speed of a vehicle under observation and particularly includes all devices or systems described or referenced in 12 NCAC 09C .0601.
- ~~(32) "Time Distance" means a speed-measuring instrument that electronically computes, from measurements of time and distance, the average speed of a vehicle under observation.~~

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-2; 17C-6; 17C-10; 153A-217;
Eff. January 1, 1981;
Amended Eff. November 1, 1981; August 15, 1981;
Readopted Eff. July 1, 1982;
Temporary Amendment Eff. December 14, 1983 for a period of 120 days to expire on April 12, 1984;
Amended Eff. November 1, 1993; March 1, 1990; July 1, 1989;
Temporary Amendment Eff. October 1, 1994 for a period of 180 days to expire on April 1, 1995;
Amended Eff. August 1, 2000; April 1, 1999; August 1, 1998; January 1, 1995;
Temporary Amendment Eff. January 1, 2001;

1 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2002; April 1, 2001;*
2 *Temporary Amendment Eff. April 15, 2003;*
3 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2017; February 1, 2016; January 1, 2015; January 1, 2006; June 1, 2005;*
4 *April 1, 2004;*
5 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
6 *2019;*
7 *Amended Eff. May 1, 2025; October 1, ~~2022.~~ 2022.*
8 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0106 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0106 CRIMINAL JUSTICE STANDARDS DIVISION**

4 The Criminal Justice Standards Division of the Department of Justice shall administer the standards set forth in these
5 Rules regarding the certification of criminal justice officers and instructors and the accreditation of criminal justice
6 training schools and programs. The Standards Division shall present to the Commission for its adoption administrative
7 procedures for those programs of certification and accreditation and may create appropriate forms for application for
8 and administration of those programs.

9
10 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-9;*

11 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

12 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*

13 *~~2019.~~ 2019.*

14 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0107 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0107 PROCEDURES FOR PETITIONS FOR RULE-MAKING**

4 (a) Petitions for Rule-Making shall be submitted to the Commission and shall contain:

- 5 (1) petitioner's name, address, and telephone number;
6 (2) a draft of the proposed rule or rule change for adoptions or amendments; and
7 (3) the reason for its proposal.

8 (b) Petitioners may also submit the following in the petition:

- 9 (1) the effect of the proposal on existing rules or decisions;
10 (2) data supporting the proposal;
11 (3) practices likely to be affected by the proposal; and
12 (4) a list or description of persons likely to be affected by the proposed rule.

13
14 *History Note: Authority G.S. 150B-20;*

15 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

16 *Amended Eff. April 1, 2009; November 1, 1993; July 1, 1988; April 1, 1984;*

17 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-33(b)(9), Administrative Law Judge Donald W. Overby declared Paragraph*
18 *(d) of this rule void as applied in Curtis Canty v. NC Criminal Justice Education and Training*
19 *Standards Commission (14 DOJ 01202);*

20 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
21 *2019;*

22 *Amended Eff. August 1, ~~2019~~ 2019;*

23 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0201 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **SECTION .0200 - ENFORCEMENT OF RULES**
4

5 **12 NCAC 09A .0201 INVESTIGATION OF VIOLATION OF RULES**

6 (a) If any criminal justice agency, school, authorized representative acting on behalf of either, or individual is reported
7 to be or suspected of being in violation of any of the rules in this Chapter, the Commission may take action in
8 accordance with Rules .0202 through .0206 of this Section if necessary to correct the violation and to ensure that
9 similar violations do not occur in the future.

10 (b) Before taking action against an agency, school, or individual for a violation, the Standards Division shall
11 investigate the alleged violation and present a report of its findings to the Probable Cause Committee of the
12 Commission.

13 (c) The Probable Cause Committee shall convene prior to the next regular meeting of the Commission, shall consider
14 the report of the Standards Division, and shall make a determination as to whether or not probable cause exists that
15 the Commission's rules have been violated.

16 (d) If it is determined by the Probable Cause Committee that probable cause exists, it may:

- 17 (1) direct the Standards Division to conduct a further investigation of the alleged violation;
18 (2) direct the Standards Division to conduct an administrative hearing in the matter, pursuant to Rule
19 .0207 of this Subchapter; or
20 (3) determine the appropriate sanctions against the violator pursuant to the Commission's rules.

21
22 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

23 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

24 *Amended Eff. March 1, 2004; November 1, 1993; July 1, 1990;*

25 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
26 *2019;*

27 *Amended Eff. January 1, ~~2021~~. 2021;*

28 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0202 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0202 SANCTIONS FOR VIOLATIONS BY AGENCIES OR SCHOOLS**

4 If the Commission finds that a violation has been committed by an agency or school, the Commission may:

- 5 (1) issue an oral warning and request for compliance;
6 (2) issue a written warning and request for compliance;
7 (3) issue an official written reprimand;
8 (4) suspend and refuse to grant accreditation to any school or program or course of instruction until
9 proper corrective measures have been taken to bring the agency or school into compliance with these
10 Rules and verification of such compliance has been made by the Commission; or
11 (5) suspend and refuse to grant accreditation to any school or program or course of instruction for a
12 specific period of time not to exceed five years.

13
14 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

15 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

16 *Amended Eff. July 1, 1990;*

17 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*

18 *~~2019~~ 2019;*

19 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0203 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0203 SANCTIONS FOR VIOLATIONS BY INDIVIDUALS**

4 When any person certified by the Commission is found to have knowingly and willfully violated any provision or
5 requirement of these Rules, the Commission may take action to correct the violation and to ensure that the violation
6 does not re-occur, including:

- 7 (1) issuing an oral warning and request for compliance;
8 (2) issuing a written warning and request for compliance;
9 (3) issuing an official written reprimand;
10 (4) suspending the individual's certification for a specified period of time or until acceptable corrective
11 action is taken by the individual;
12 (5) revoking or denying the individual's certification.

13
14 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

15 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

16 *Amended Eff. July 1, 1990;*

17 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
18 *~~2019~~ 2019;*

19 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0204 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0204 SUSPENSION: REVOCATION: OR DENIAL OF CERTIFICATION**

4 (a) The Commission shall revoke the certification of a criminal justice officer when the Commission finds that the
5 officer has committed, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09A .0103(6), or been convicted of:

- 6 (1) a felony offense; or
7 (2) a criminal offense for which the authorized punishment included imprisonment for more than two
8 years.

9 (b) The Commission may suspend, revoke, or deny the certification of a criminal justice officer when the Commission
10 finds that the applicant for certification or the certified officer:

- 11 (1) has not completed the required basic training course in its entirety within prescribed time periods
12 relevant or applicable to a specified position or job title, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09C .0303(d) and
13 09G .0304(a).
14 (2) fails to meet or maintain one or more of the minimum employment standards required by 12 NCAC
15 09B .0100 for the category of the officer's certification or fails to meet or maintain one or more of
16 the minimum training standards required by 12 NCAC 09B .0200 or 12 NCAC 09B .0400 for the
17 category of the officer's certification;
18 (3) has committed or been convicted of:
19 (A) a criminal offense or unlawful act defined in 12 NCAC 09A .0103(26)(b) as a Class B
20 misdemeanor; or
21 (B) four or more criminal offenses or unlawful acts defined in 12 NCAC 09A .0103(26)(a) as
22 a Class A misdemeanor, each of which occurred after the date of initial certification;
23 (4) has been separated by a criminal justice agency for commission or conviction of a motor vehicle
24 offense requiring the revocation of the officer's driver's ~~license~~ license;
25 (5) has been discharged by a criminal justice agency because the officer lacks the mental or physical
26 capabilities to properly fulfill the responsibilities of a criminal justice officer;
27 (6) has knowingly made a material misrepresentation, including knowingly providing false or omitting
28 information, of any information required for certification or accreditation;
29 (7) has knowingly and willfully, by any means of false pretense, deception, defraudation,
30 misrepresentation, or cheating, obtained or attempted to obtain credit, training, or certification from
31 the Commission;
32 (8) has knowingly and willfully, by any means of false pretense, deception, defraudation,
33 misrepresentation, or cheating, aided another person in obtaining or attempting to obtain credit,
34 training, or certification from the Commission;
35 (9) has failed to make either of the notifications as required by 12 NCAC 09B .0101(13);

- 1 (10) has been removed from office by decree of the Superior Court in accord with the provisions of G.S.
2 128-16 or has been removed from office by sentence of the court in accord with the provisions of
3 G.S. 14-230;
- 4 (11) fails to satisfactorily complete the minimum in-service training requirements as prescribed in 12
5 NCAC 09E .0100;
- 6 (12) has refused to submit to a drug screen as required by 12 NCAC 09C .0310 and 09G .0211;
- 7 (13) has produced a positive result on a drug screen reported to the Commission as specified in 12 NCAC
8 09C .0310 or 09G .0211, where the positive result cannot be explained to the Commission's
9 satisfaction;
- 10 (14) has been denied certification or had certification suspended or revoked by the North Carolina
11 Sheriffs' Education and Training Standards Commission, the North Carolina Criminal Justice
12 Education and Training Standards Commission; the North Carolina Company/Campus Police
13 Program; or a similar North Carolina, out of state or federal approving, certifying or licensing
14 agency;
- 15 (15) has performed activities or duties for which certification by the Commission is required without
16 having first obtained the appropriate certification; or
- 17 (16) has been convicted of any offense proscribed by 18 USC 922(g)(8) that would prohibit possession
18 of a firearm or ammunition;
- 19 (17) has engaged in sexual activity, whether in uniform of the employing agency or out of uniform,
20 (A) while on duty;
21 (B) while on or off duty in a motor vehicle owned or under the control of a law enforcement
22 agency;
23 (C) while on or off duty on the premises operated by the employing criminal justice agency;
24 (D) while in uniform of the employing agency in a public place;
25 (E) with an employee with whom the person had at the time supervisory responsibilities; or
26 (F) with a student who at the time is enrolled in a Commission-approved course in which the
27 officer is an instructor, qualified assistant, or school director.
- 28 For purposes of this subsection, sexual activity includes any act defined as a sexual act or sexual
29 contact per G.S. 14-27.20 and includes vaginal intercourse; or
- 30 (18) has been found to be untruthful during a criminal or internal formal investigation conducted by a
31 law enforcement agency or during an investigation for a rules violation conducted by the North
32 Carolina Criminal Justice Standards Division, North Carolina Sheriffs' Standards Division, or the
33 North Carolina Company and Campus Police Administrator.
- 34 (c) Following suspension, revocation, or denial of the person's certification, the person may not remain employed or
35 appointed as a criminal justice officer and the person may not exercise any authority of a criminal justice officer during
36 a period for which the person's certification is suspended, revoked, or denied.
- 37

1 *History Note:* *Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*
2 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*
3 *Amended Eff. April 1, 2009; February 1, 2006; August 1, 2001; August 1, 1995; November 1, 1993;*
4 *March 1, 1992; July 1, 1990;*
5 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
6 *2019.*
7 *Amended Eff: January 1, ~~2026~~ 2026;*
8 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0205 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0205 PERIOD OF SUSPENSION: REVOCATION: OR DENIAL**

4 (a) When the Commission revokes or denies the certification of a criminal justice officer, the period of the sanction
5 shall be permanent where the cause of sanction is:

- 6 (1) commission or conviction of a felony offense, except as provided by G.S. 17C-13(a);
7 (2) commission or conviction of a criminal offense for which punishment is authorized by law to
8 included imprisonment for more than two years, except as provided by G.S. 17C-13(a); or
9 (3) the second suspension of an officer's certification for any of the causes requiring a five-year period
10 of suspension pursuant to 12 NCAC 09A .0204.

11 (b) When the Commission suspends or denies the certification of a criminal justice officer, the period of sanction
12 shall be not less than five years; however, the Commission shall reduce or suspend the period of sanction or substitute
13 a period of probation in lieu of suspension of certification, or impose a combination of reduction, suspension, or
14 probation as determined on a case-by-case basis following a consent order or an administrative hearing, where the
15 cause of sanction is:

- 16 (1) commission or conviction of a criminal offense other than those listed in Paragraph (a) of this Rule;
17 (2) refusal to submit to the applicant or lateral transferee drug screen required by ~~these Rules~~; 12 NCAC
18 09C .0310;
19 (3) production of a positive result on a drug screen reported to the Commission under 12 NCAC 09C
20 .0310, where the positive result cannot be explained to the satisfaction of the agency's Medical
21 Review Officer, who shall be a licensed physician;
22 (4) ~~material misrepresentation~~ misrepresentation, including omitting or knowingly providing false
23 information of any information required for certification or accreditation;
24 (5) obtaining, attempting to obtain, aiding another person to obtain, or aiding another person to attempt
25 to obtain credit, training or certification by any means of false pretense, deception, fraud,
26 misrepresentation or cheating;
27 (6) failure to make ~~either any~~ of the notifications as required by 12 NCAC 09B .0101(13);
28 (7) removal from office under the provisions of G.S. 128-16 or the provisions of G.S. 14-230;
29 (8) performing activities or duties for which certification by the Commission is required without having
30 first obtained the appropriate certification; ~~or~~
31 (9) commission or conviction of four or more crimes or unlawful acts defined as "Class B
32 misdemeanors" in 12 NCAC 09A ~~.0103(24)(b)~~, .0103(26)(b) regardless of the date of ~~conviction~~,
33 commission or conviction;
34 (10) engaging in sexual activity outlined in .0204(b)(17) of this Subchapter; or
35 (11) untruthfulness during a criminal or internal formal investigation conducted by a law enforcement
36 agency or during an investigation for a rules violation conducted by the Division, the Company and

Campus Police Administrator, or the Sheriffs' Standards Division as outlined in 12 NCAC 09A .0204(b)(18).

(c) When the Commission suspends or denies the certification of a criminal justice officer, the period of sanction shall be for an indefinite period, but continuing so long as the stated deficiency, infraction, or impairment continues to exist, where the cause of sanction is:

- (1) failure to meet or satisfy relevant basic training requirements pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0205, .0225, .0235, and .0236;
- (2) failure to meet or maintain the minimum standards of employment pursuant to 09B .0101, .0111, .0114, .0116, .0117;
- (3) discharge from a criminal justice agency for impairment of physical or mental capabilities; or
- (4) failure to meet or satisfy the in-service training requirements as prescribed in 12 NCAC ~~09E~~ 09E .0100.

*History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;
Eff. January 1, 1981;
Amended Eff. February 1, 2006; August 1, 2001; November 1, 1993; July 1, 1990; July 1, 1989;
October 1, 1985;
Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25, 2019;
Amended Eff. March 1, 2024; January 1, 2022; July 1, ~~2020~~ 2020;
Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09A .0207 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09A .0207 ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING PROCEDURES**

4 (a) Administrative hearings in contested cases conducted by the Commission or an Administrative Law Judge as
5 authorized in G.S. 150B-40(e) shall be governed by:

- 6 (1) procedures set out in Article 3A of G.S. 150B;
7 (2) the Rules of Civil Procedure as contained in G.S. 1A-1;
8 (3) the General Rules of Practice for the Superior and District Courts as authorized by G.S. 7A-34 and
9 found in the Rules Volume of the North Carolina General Statutes.

10 (b) The rules establishing procedures for contested cases adopted by the Office of Administrative Hearings as
11 contained in 26 NCAC 03 are hereby incorporated by reference, including subsequent amendments and editions, for
12 contested cases for which this agency has authority to adopt rules pursuant to G.S. 150B-38(h).

13 (c) If the case is conducted under G.S. 150B-40(b), the presiding officer shall have the powers and duties of the Chief
14 Administrative Law Judge or the presiding Administrative Law Judge in 26 NCAC 03.

15 (d) Pursuant to G.S. 17C-11(b), an applicant for certification, or a certified officer shall have 30 days from the date
16 of receipt of a notice of proposed action by the Commission to request a contested case hearing.

17
18 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-11(b); 150B-38(h); 150B-40;*
19 *Eff. August 1, ~~2019~~ 2019;*
20 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0103 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0103 FINGERPRINT CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD CHECK**

4 (a) Each applicant for certification shall submit electronic fingerprints in the Statewide Automated Fingerprint
5 Identification System (SAFIS).

6 (b) The employing agency shall forward the applicant's fingerprints to the North Carolina State Bureau of
7 Investigation for a criminal history record check utilizing fingerprints against State and federal files.

8 (c) The employing agency will receive a report of the results of the criminal history record check utilizing fingerprints
9 against State and federal files. The employing agency shall retain the results of the criminal history record check
10 utilizing fingerprints in compliance with the North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources Retention
11 and Disposition Schedule established pursuant to G.S. 121-4 and G.S. 132-8.1. The employing agency shall include
12 the results of the fingerprint criminal history record check with the applications submitted to the Commission.

13 (d) Each applicant for certification and certified criminal justice officers shall also submit electronic fingerprints,
14 other identifying information required by the State and National Repositories of Criminal Histories, and any other
15 information required by the State Bureau of Investigation for their enrollment in the Federal Bureau of Investigation's
16 Next Generation Identification (NGI) System and Criminal Justice Record of Arrest and Prosecution Background
17 (RapBack) Service.

18 (e) Pursuant to 12 NCAC 09C .0303(a), an applicant for certification as a law enforcement officer may not perform
19 any action requiring certification by the Commission prior to the date on which the employing agency receives the
20 report of the results of the criminal history record check utilizing fingerprints.

21
22 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

23 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

24 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
25 *2019;*

26 *Amended Eff. March 1, 2024; October 1, ~~2022~~ 2022;*

27 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0104 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0104 MEDICAL EXAMINATION**

4 (a) Each applicant for certification or enrollment in a Commission-approved basic law enforcement training course
5 pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0205, shall complete, sign, and date the Commission's Medical History Statement Form
6 (F-1), pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0105, and shall be examined by either a physician, physician assistant, or nurse
7 practitioner who holds a current license in the United States to practice medicine, as issued by a state medical board,
8 to help determine his or her fitness to carry out the physical requirements of the position of law enforcement officer.

9 (b) Prior to being examined, the applicant shall provide the examining physician, physician's assistant, or nurse
10 practitioner with:

11 (1) the Medical History Statement Form (F-1), which must be completed by the applicant and signed
12 by the examiner; and

13 (2) the Medical Examination Report Form (F-2), the Tuberculosis Questionnaire Form (F-2A), and the
14 Medical Examination Report Addendum Form (F-2B), pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0105.

15 (c) The examining physician, physician's assistant, or nurse practitioner, shall record the results of the examination
16 on the Medical Examination Report Form (F-2) and shall sign and date the form.

17 (d) The Medical Examination Report Form (F-2), the Tuberculosis Questionnaire Form (F-2A), and the Medical
18 History Statement Form (F-1) shall be valid for one year after the date the examination was conducted and shall be
19 completed prior to:

20 (1) the applicant beginning the Commission-approved basic law enforcement training course; and

21 (2) the employing agency submission of application for certification to the Commission.
22

23 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

24 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

25 *Amended Eff. April 1, 2018; October 1, 2017; November 1, 1993; February 1, 1991; March 1, 1990;*

26 *April 1, 1985;*

27 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
28 *2019;*

29 *Amended Eff. February 1, 2026; November 1, 2024; October 1, ~~2022~~ 2022;*

30 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0105 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0105 EMPLOYMENT INTERVIEW**

4 (a) Prior to employment, the employing agency shall conduct an interview of the applicant to evaluate the applicant's
5 knowledge, skills, and abilities for success as a law enforcement officer.

6 (b) The Agency head may conduct the interview personally or delegate the responsibility to a qualified staff member
7 or panel, who is competent, whether by education, training, or experience, to conduct the employment interview. The
8 respective agency head identifies those individuals he or she deems qualified.

9
10 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

11 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

12 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
13 *2019;*

14 *Amended Eff. October 1, ~~2022~~, 2022;*

15 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0106 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0106 DOCUMENTATION OF EDUCATIONAL REQUIREMENTS**

4 (a) Each applicant for certification as a law enforcement officer shall furnish documentary evidence of high school,
5 college, or university graduation to the employing agency. Documentary evidence of high school graduation consists
6 of diplomas or transcripts from public schools or private schools which meet standards adopted by either the North
7 Carolina Department of Public Instruction, the Division of Non-Public Instruction, or a comparable out of state
8 agency; or such documentation as described in Paragraphs (b), (c), (d), and (e) of this Rule. Documentary evidence of
9 college or university graduation consists of diplomas or transcripts from colleges or universities accredited as such by
10 the Department of Education of the state in which the institution is located, an accredited body recognized by either
11 the U.S. Department of Education or Council for Higher Education Accreditation, or the state university of the state
12 in which the institution is located.

13 (b) High school diplomas earned through home school programs must be accompanied by a true and accurate or
14 certified transcript and must meet the requirements of Part 3 of Article 39 of Chapter 115C of the North Carolina
15 General Statutes, or a comparable out-of-state statute.

16 (c) Diplomas earned from high schools or equivalent institutions outside of the United States must be translated into
17 English and be accompanied by an authentic transcript. The Division's staff shall evaluate the transcripts to ensure
18 they are scholastically comparable to United States curriculum requirements.

19 (d) The Division's staff shall evaluate high school diplomas earned through on-line or correspondence courses on a
20 case by case basis. Such diplomas must meet state and local requirements for the jurisdiction from which the diploma
21 was issued.

22 (e) Documentary evidence of having earned a High School Equivalency (HSE) diploma shall be satisfied by a certified
23 copy of a high school equivalency credential or an adult high school diploma, both of which must be recognized by
24 the U.S. Department of Education, the state Department of Education, or educational agency that is authorized in the
25 state to issue High School Equivalency (HSE) diplomas.

26 (f) Documentary evidence of the attainment of satisfactory scores on any military high school equivalency
27 examination is acceptable as evidence of high school graduation if verified by a true copy of the veteran's DD214,
28 Certificate of Release from Active Duty.

29
30 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

31 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

32 *Amended Eff. April 1, 2018; February 1, 2016; November 1, 2015; June 1, 2012; August 1, 2000;*

33 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
34 *2019;*

35 *Amended Eff. October 1, ~~2022~~ 2022;*

36 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0111 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0111 CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD**

4 (a) Consistent with and subject to the requirements of 12 NCAC 09A .0204, every law enforcement officer employed
5 or certified in North Carolina shall not have committed or been convicted by a local, state, federal, or military court
6 of:

- 7 (1) a felony;
- 8 (2) a crime for which the punishment could have been imprisonment for more than two years;
- 9 (3) a crime or unlawful act defined as a "Class B misdemeanor" within the five year period prior to the
10 date of certification ;
- 11 (4) a crime or unlawful act defined as a "Class B Misdemeanor" occurring after the date of certification;
- 12 (5) four or more crimes or unlawful acts defined as "Class B misdemeanors" regardless of the date of
13 conviction;
- 14 (6) four or more crimes or unlawful acts defined as "Class A misdemeanors" except the applicant may
15 be employed if the last conviction occurred more than two years prior to the date of certification or
- 16 (7) a combination of four or more Class A Misdemeanor or Class B Misdemeanor regardless of the
17 date;
- 18 (8) for personnel who are authorized to carry a firearm in the execution of their duties, an offense that,
19 pursuant to 18 USC 922(g)(8), would prohibit the possession of a firearm or ammunition.

20 (b) 12 NCAC 09A .0103(5) defines "Commission of an offense" as a finding by the North Carolina Criminal Justice
21 Education and Training Standards Commission or equivalent regulating body from another state that a person
22 performed the acts necessary to satisfy the elements of a specified criminal offense.

23 (c) The requirements of this Rule shall be applicable at all times during which the officer is certified by the
24 Commission and shall also apply to all applications for certification.

25
26 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*

27 *Eff. January 1, 1981;*

28 *Amended Eff. November 1, 2015; April 1, 2009; August 1, 1998; December 1, 1987; October 1,*
29 *1985; January 1, 1985; January 1, 1983;*

30 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
31 *2019;*

32 *Amended Eff. October 1, ~~2022~~ 2022;*

33 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0202 is readopted with changes as published in 40:23 NCR 1862-1899 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0202 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SCHOOL DIRECTOR**

4 (a) In planning, developing, coordinating, and delivering each Commission-certified criminal justice training
5 course, the School Director shall:

- 6 (1) Formalize and schedule the course curriculum in accordance with the curriculum standards
7 established in this Subchapter;
- 8 (2) Select and schedule instructors who are certified by the Commission, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B
9 .0301;
- 10 (3) Ensure each instructor utilizes Commission approved lesson plans and instructional materials, as
11 specified in Rules .0205, .0209, .0210, ~~.0211~~, .0212, ~~.0213~~, ~~.0214~~, .0226, .0227, .0232, .0233,
12 .0235, .0236, .0237, .0238, .0241, .0313, .0314, or .0410 of this Subchapter;
- 13 (4) Arrange for the availability of audiovisual aids and materials, publications, facilities, and
14 equipment for training in all topic areas;
- 15 (5) Develop, reproduce, and distribute any requirements determined by the school to be necessary or
16 appropriate for:
- 17 (A) effective course delivery;
- 18 (B) establishing responsibilities and obligations of agencies or departments employing or
19 sponsoring course trainees; and
- 20 (C) regulating trainee participation and demeanor, ensuring trainee attendance, and
21 maintaining performance records;
- 22 (6) Administer the course delivery in accordance with Commission approved lesson plans, pursuant to
23 Subparagraph (a)(3) of this Rule;
- 24 (7) Maintain direct supervision, direction, and control over the performance of all persons to whom
25 any portion of the planning, development, presentation, or administration of a course has been
26 ~~delegated~~; delegated;
- 27 (8) Within 48 hours, notify the Division in writing of any schedule changes for an ongoing Commission-
28 approved course. Schedule changes include changes to training times, blocks of instruction, training
29 locations, and any other content included on the approved Pre-Delivery Report (F-10A) for the
30 course, as prescribed in 12 NCAC 09I .0102. Notification shall include an explanation of and
31 reasoning for the schedule change from the School Director or a qualified assistant.
- 32 (9) Within 48 hours, notify the Division of an instance of illness or injury requiring or resulting in
33 medical assistance or hospitalization of a student enrolled in a Commission-approved course.
34 Notification shall consist of a completed Student Injury Report pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0103 and
35 12 NCAC 09I .0105;
- 36 (10) Within five business days of the qualifying event, notify the Division in writing of:
37 (A) the removal by the School Director, school, training program, or employing institution of a

1 Commission-certified instructor from a Commission-accredited course delivery; or
2 (B) the opening by the school, training program, or employing institution of an internal
3 investigation, disciplinary proceeding, or pre-disciplinary proceeding which a Commission-
4 certified instructor is the subject of and which contains allegations that could constitute
5 conduct outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0301(e) or could otherwise be considered a failure to
6 meet or maintain requirements for instructor certification, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0300.

7 Written notification shall include the name of the instructor; name of the school or agency; name of the
8 Commission-accredited courses for which the instructor is planned to teach, currently teaching, or removed
9 from; dates and explanation of the qualifying event or conduct which resulted in the instructor's removal,
10 investigation, or proceeding; and explanation of action taken by the School Director, training program, or
11 school.

12 (b) In addition to Paragraph (a) of this Rule, in planning, developing, coordinating, and delivering each
13 Commission-accredited Basic Law Enforcement Training Course, the School Director shall:

- 14 (1) Schedule course presentation to include 12 hours of instruction each week during consecutive
15 calendar weeks, except that there may be as many as six one-week breaks until course
16 requirements are completed. If the Governor declares a State of Emergency pursuant to G.S.
17 166A-19.3(19), the Director of the Criminal Justice Standards Division shall allow additional
18 breaks in a specific course delivery when the Director determines that doing so is necessary based
19 on consideration of the following factors:
- 20 (A) Whether instruction has begun in the course or whether course initiation may be
21 postponed;
- 22 (B) The risk of harm to students that may be caused by continuation of the course;
- 23 (C) Whether those enrolled in the course have been or will likely be called to action to help
24 address the State of Emergency;
- 25 (D) The specific need for the waiver; and
- 26 (E) The degree of benefit to the public in allowing a break in instruction. Notice of waivers
27 granted pursuant to the Section shall be posted on the CJETS website
28 <https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/>. The waivers granted
29 pursuant to this Section shall only apply to courses that began during the effective period
30 of the State of Emergency;
- 31 (2) Schedule only specialized instructors certified by the Commission to teach those high-liability
32 areas as specified in Rule .0304(a) of this Subchapter as either the lead instructor or as assistant
33 instructors or role players;
- 34 (3) With the exception of the First Responder, Officer Health and Wellness, Explosives and
35 Hazardous Materials Emergencies, and topical areas outlined in Rule .0304(a) of this Subchapter,
36 schedule one specialized instructor certified by the Commission for every six trainees while
37 engaged in a practical performance exercise;

- (4) Schedule one specialized instructor certified by the Commission for every eight trainees while engaged in a practical performance exercise in the topical areas ~~Subject Control Arrest Techniques~~ or Compliance and Control Tactics;
- (5) Schedule no single individual to instruct more than ~~35 percent of the total hours of the 640-hour curriculum~~ or 25 percent of the total hours of the 868-hour curriculum during any one delivery of the Basic Law Enforcement Training Course presentation;
- (6) Not less than 30 days before commencing delivery of the Basic Law Enforcement Training Course, submit to the Commission a Pre-Delivery Report of Training Course Presentation pursuant to 12 NCAC ~~09C .0211~~; 09I .0102;
- (7) Submit a copy of any rules and requirements for the school. A copy of those rules shall also be given to each trainee and to the executive officer of each trainee's employing or sponsoring agency or department at the time the trainee enrolls in the course;
- (8) Monitor, or designate an instructor certified by the Commission to monitor, a presentation of each instructor once during each three year certification period in each topic taught by the instructor and prepare a written evaluation on the instructor's performance and suitability for subsequent instructional assignments. The observations shall be of sufficient duration to ensure that the delivery is objective-based, documented by, and consistent with a Commission-approved lesson plan, pursuant to Subparagraph (a)(3) of this Rule. For each topic area, the School Director's evaluation shall be based upon the course delivery observations, the instructor's use of the approved lesson plan, and the results of the student evaluations of the instructor. For probationary instructors, the evaluations conducted by another instructor shall be prepared on the Criminal Justice Instructor Evaluation (Form ~~F-16~~) F-16), pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0101, and forwarded to the Commission. Based on this evaluation, the School Director shall recommend approval or denial of requests for General Instructor Certification. For all other instructors, these evaluations shall be prepared on the Criminal Justice Instructor Evaluation (Form F-16), be kept on file by the school for a period of three years, and shall be made available for inspection by a representative of the Commission upon request. In the event the evaluation of an instructor indicates that his or her performance was less than acceptable, the School Director shall forward a copy of the evaluation to the Commission. Any instructor who is evaluating the instructional presentation of another instructor shall hold certification in the same instructional topic area as that for which the instructor is being evaluated. ~~The Criminal Justice Evaluation (Form F-16) shall contain the following information:~~
- (A) ~~Instructor's name, date of birth, and Acadis ID number;~~
- (B) ~~Evaluator's name, and Acadis ID number;~~
- (C) ~~Block of Instruction, date, location, and total hours of instruction;~~
- (D) ~~Scores for Instructional Ability and Strategies; and~~
- (E) ~~Presentation Evaluation Criteria.~~

- 1 (9) Administer or designate a Qualified Assistant to administer course specific tests during course
2 delivery:
- 3 (A) to determine and record the level of trainee comprehension and retention of instructional
4 subject matter;
- 5 (B) to provide a basis for a final determination or recommendation regarding the minimum
6 degree of knowledge and skill of each trainee to function as an inexperienced law
7 enforcement officer; and
- 8 (C) to determine subject or topic areas of deficiency for the application of Rule ~~.0405(a)(3)~~
9 .0405(a) of this Subchapter; and
- 10 (10) Not more than 10 days after the conclusion of a school's offering of Basic Law Enforcement
11 Training, ensure all student test scores and class documents have been uploaded to the North
12 Carolina Justice Training and Certification portal, ~~Aeadis platform~~, and submit to the Commission
13 a Post-Delivery Report of Training Course Presentation (~~Form F-10B~~), (Web Form F-10B),
14 pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0102.
- 15 (c) In addition to Paragraph (a) of this Rule, in planning, developing, coordinating, and delivering each
16 Commission-certified "Criminal Justice Instructor Training Course," the School Director shall:
- 17 (1) Schedule course presentation pursuant to Rule .0209 of this Subchapter;
- 18 (2) Schedule evaluators as follows:
- 19 (A) each evaluator, as well as the instructors, shall have completed a Commission-certified
20 instructor training course or an equivalent instructor training course utilizing the
21 Instructional Systems Design model, an international model with applications in
22 education, military training, and private enterprise; and
- 23 (B) each instructor and evaluator shall have completed an instructor training orientation
24 program presented by the North Carolina Justice Academy for purposes of familiarization
25 and supplementation relevant to delivery of the instructor training course and trainee
26 evaluation. The completion of an instructor training orientation program shall be
27 documented in the ~~Aeadis platform~~, North Carolina Justice Training and Certification
28 portal.
- 29 (3) Not fewer than 30 days before commencing delivery of the course, submit to the Commission a
30 Pre-Delivery Report of Training Course Presentation, Form F-10A, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I
31 .0102, with the following attachments:
- 32 (A) a course schedule showing the arrangement of topical presentations and proposed
33 instructional assignments;
- 34 (B) the names and Academy ID ~~Aeadis identification~~ numbers of all instructors and
35 evaluators; and
- 36 (C) a copy of any rules and requirements for the school; and
- 37 ~~(4)(5)~~ Not more than 10 days after course completion, submit to the Commission a Post-Delivery Report

of Training Course Presentation Form F-10B, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0102, containing the following:

- (A) class enrollment roster;
- (B) a course schedule with the designation of instructors and evaluators utilized in delivery;
- (C) scores recorded for each trainee on the 70 minute skill presentation; and
- (D) designation of trainees who completed the course in its entirety.

(d) In addition to Paragraph (a) of this Rule, in planning, developing, coordinating, and delivering each Commission-certified RADAR, ~~RADAR and Time Distance, Time Distance, or LIDAR~~ RADAR/LIDAR, or LIDAR speed ~~measurement~~ measuring instrument (SMI) operator training course or re-certification course, the School Director shall:

- (1) select and schedule ~~speed measurement instrument~~ SMI instructors who are certified by the Commission as ~~instructors~~ instructors, pursuant to .0237 and .0308 of this Subchapter, for the specific speed ~~measurement~~ measuring instruments in which the trainees are to receive instruction;
- (2) not fewer than 30 days before the scheduled starting date, submit to the Director of the Standards Division a Pre-Delivery Report of Training Course Presentation, Form F-10A, ~~that shall contain a period of course delivery including the proposed starting date, course location, requested date and location for the administration of the State exam, and the number of trainees to be trained on each type of approved speed measurement instrument;~~ pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0102, and
- (3) upon completing delivery of the Commission-certified course, and not more than 10 days after the conclusion of a school's offering of a ~~certified RADAR, RADAR and Time Distance, Time Distance, or LIDAR~~ speed ~~measurement~~ a RADAR, LIDAR, or RADAR/LIDAR operator training course or re-certification course, the School Director shall notify the Commission regarding the progress and achievements of each trainee by submitting a Post-Delivery Report of Training Course Presentation, Form ~~F-10B~~, F-10B, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0102. This report shall include the original motor-skill examination ~~form(s)~~ forms completed and signed by the certified instructor responsible for administering the motor-skill examination to the respective trainee.

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;
Eff. January 1, 1981;
Amended Eff. November 1, 1981;
Readopted w/change Eff. July 1, 1982;
Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; June 1, 2013; April 1, 2009; November 1, 2007; January 1, 2006;
May 1, 2004; August 1, 2000; January 1, 1996; November 1, 1993; December 1, 1987; January 1,
1985;
Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,
2019;

1 *Amended Eff. January, 1, 2025; April 1, 2022; July 1, 2021; January 1, 2021; July 1, ~~2020~~ 2020;*
2 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

12 NCAC 09B .0212 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

12 NCAC 09B .0212 CERTIFICATION AND RE-CERTIFICATION TRAINING FOR RADAR OPERATORS

(a) The Radar Operator Training Course for law enforcement officers shall be designed to provide the student with the skills and knowledge to perform the function of a law enforcement radar operator. This course shall be for a period not to exceed four consecutive weeks and shall consist of a minimum of 30 hours of instruction, including the following topic areas and minimum hours for each:

(1)	Course Orientation	0.5 Hours
(2)	Introduction to Radar Training	0.5 Hours
(3)	Speed Offenses and Speed Enforcement	2 Hours
(4)	Basic Principles of Radar Speed Measurement	5 Hours
(5)	Legal and Operational Considerations	4 Hours
(6)	Familiarization and Operation of Specific Radar Instruments	10 Hours
(7)	Courtroom Preparation	3 Hours
(8)	Motor-Skill Performance Testing	4 Hours
(9)	Course Review	1 Hour

This course shall have a minimum ratio of one instructor per six students.

(b) Only those individuals currently certified as a law enforcement officer or appointed personnel of a law enforcement agency shall be enrolled in the Radar Operator Training Course. Sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and federal law enforcement personnel, including armed forces personnel, shall be allowed to participate in the a Radar Operator Training Course at the discretion of the school director without having enrolled in or having successfully completed the basic law enforcement training course, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0205, and without being currently certified in a probationary status or holding general law enforcement certification.

(c) The Radar Operator Re-Certification Training Course shall be designed to provide the law enforcement officer with the skills and knowledge to continue to proficiently perform the functions of a radar operator. This course shall be presented within a period not to exceed one week and shall consist of a minimum of six hours of instruction, including the following topic areas and minimum hours for each:

(1)	Course Orientation	0.5 Hours
(2)	Legal and Operational Considerations	1.5 Hours
(3)	Motor-Skill Performance Testing	4 Hours

This course shall have a minimum ratio of one instructor per six students.

(d) Students enrolled in a Radar Operator Re-Certification Training Course shall, at the time of enrollment, hold active radar operator certification or have previously held active radar operator certification within 12 months prior to the scheduled end date of the course. Federal law enforcement personnel shall be allowed to participate in a Radar Operator Re-Certification Training Course at the discretion of the school director without previously having held radar operator certification, but such personnel must have completed one introductory level speed measurement instrument

1 course that included instruction on operation of radar instruments. Courses that meet this requirement include those
2 described in Paragraph (a) of this Rule and those described in 12 NCAC 09B .0242(a).

3 (e) If the Governor declares a State of Emergency pursuant to G.S. 166A- 19.3(19), the Director of the Criminal
4 Justice Standards Division shall allow additional time to complete a specific course delivery beyond the time limits
5 set forth in Paragraphs (a) and (c) of this Rule when the Director determines that doing so is necessary based on
6 consideration of the following factors:

- 7 (1) Whether instruction has begun in the course or whether course initiation may be postponed;
- 8 (2) The risk of harm to students that may be caused by the continuation of the course;
- 9 (3) Whether those enrolled in the course have been or will likely be called to action to help address the
10 State of Emergency;
- 11 (4) The specific need for the waiver; and
- 12 (5) The degree of benefit to the public in allowing a break in instruction.

13 Notice of waivers granted pursuant to this Section shall be posted on the CJETS website, [https://ncdoj.gov/law-](https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/)
14 [enforcement-training/criminal-justice/](https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/). The waivers granted pursuant to this Section shall only apply to courses that
15 began or were in progress during the effective period of the State of Emergency.

16
17 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;*

18 *Eff. November 1, 1981;*

19 *Readopted w/change Eff. July 1, 1982;*

20 *Temporary Amendment Eff. February 24, 1984 for a period of 120 days to expire on June 22, 1984;*

21 *Amended Eff. April 1, 1999; November 1, 1998; August 1, 1995; February 1, 1991; July 1, 1989;*

22 *August 1, 1984;*

23 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
24 *2019;*

25 *Amended Eff. February 1, 2026; April 1, ~~2022~~, 2022;*

26 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0215 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0215 SUPPLEMENTAL SMI TRAINING**

4 (a) The supplemental speed measuring instrument (SMI) training course for law enforcement officers shall be
5 designed to allow officers an opportunity to be certified on additional speed measuring instruments and modes, as
6 defined in 12 NCAC 09C .0308(h), not included on the officers' initial speed measuring instrument certification. The
7 course shall be designed to provide the trainee with the skills and knowledge to perform those tasks essential to
8 function as an instructor or operator using the additional speed measuring instruments and modes.

9 (b) Each applicant for supplemental SMI training shall:

- 10 (1) possess a valid radar or lidar speed measuring instrument instructor or operator certification as a
11 result of successful completion of a training course set forth in 12 NCAC 09B .0210, .0212, .0237,
12 .0238, or .0242;
- 13 (2) present the endorsement of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training
14 coordinator, or agency head or his or her designee by submitting Form SMI-16, pursuant to 12
15 NCAC 09I .0106(a)(4);
- 16 (3) present a copy of the applicant's active SMI operator or instructor certification, which lists the
17 instruments and modes that the officer is certified to operate;
- 18 (4) demonstrate proficiency in the motor-skill and performance subject areas with the instrument and
19 modes as evidenced by completion of the Commission's SMI-1 Form, SMI-1A Form, or SMI-13
20 Form pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0106; and
- 21 (5) for individuals seeking certification on modes which are not included on their current SMI
22 certification, complete 240 minutes of supervised field practice for each additional mode on Form
23 SMI-15 pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0106. For dual antenna instruments, 120 of the 240 minutes must
24 be completed using each antenna.

25 (c) The supplemental SMI training course required for certification on the additional instruments shall consist of a
26 minimum of 1.5 hours of instruction, including the following topic areas and minimum hours for each:

- 27 (1) Course Orientation 0.5 hour
28 (2) Familiarization & Operation of Specific SMI Instruments 0.5 hour
29 (3) Motor Skills Testing (per instrument per student) 0.5 hour

30 (d) Adding instruments and modes to an individual's SMI operator or instructor certification shall not extend the
31 certification period as prescribed in 12 NCAC 09B .0308 and 09C .0308.

32
33 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;*

34 *Eff. November 1, 1981;*

35 *Readopted Eff. July 1, 1982;*

36 *Amended Eff. November 1, 2007; May 1, 2004; August 1, 2002; April 1, 1999;*

1 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
2 *2019;*
3 *Amended Eff. February 1, ~~2026~~ 2026;*
4 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

12 NCAC 09B .0238 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

12 NCAC 09B .0238 CERTIFICATION AND RE-CERTIFICATION TRAINING FOR LIDAR OPERATORS

(a) The Lidar Operator Training Course for law enforcement officers shall be designed to provide the student with the skills and knowledge to perform the function of a law enforcement lidar operator. This course shall be for a period not to exceed four consecutive weeks, and shall consist of a minimum of 30 hours of instruction and shall include the following topic areas and minimum hours for each:

(1)	Course Orientation	0.5 Hours
(2)	Introduction to Lidar Training	0.5 Hours
(3)	Basic Principles of Lidar Speed Measurement	1 Hour
(4)	Legal and Operational Considerations	1 Hour
(5)	Familiarization and Operation of Specific Lidar Instruments	2 Hours
(6)	Courtroom Preparation	1 Hour
(7)	Motor-Skill Performance Testing	3 Hours
(8)	Course Review	1 Hour

This course shall have a minimum ratio of one instructor per six students.

(b) To be eligible for enrollment in the Lidar Operator Training Course, applicants shall meet the following requirements at the time of enrollment:

- (1) have completed a Commission-approved Basic Law Enforcement Training (BLET) Course, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0205;
- (2) hold active law enforcement certification; and
- (3) hold active radar operator certification or be enrolled in a radar operator training course or a radar operator re-certification training course as outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0212; or
- (4) hold active radar instructor certification or be enrolled in a radar instructor training course or a radar instructor re-certification training course as outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0210.

Sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and federal law enforcement personnel, including armed forces personnel, who do not meet these requirements shall be allowed to participate in a Lidar Operator Training Course at the discretion of the school director.

(c) The Lidar Operator Re-Certification Training Course shall be designed to provide the law enforcement officer with the skills and knowledge to continue to perform the functions of a lidar operator. This course shall be presented within a period not to exceed one week and shall consist of a minimum of four hours of instruction, including the following topic areas and minimum hours for each:

(1)	Course Orientation	0.5 Hours
(2)	Legal and Operational Considerations	1 Hour
(3)	Motor-Skill Performance Testing	2.5 Hours

This course shall have a minimum ratio of one instructor per six students.

(d) To be eligible for enrollment in the Lidar Operator Re-Certification Training Course, applicants shall meet the following requirements at the time of enrollment:

- (1) hold active law enforcement certification;
- (2) hold active lidar operator certification or have previously held active lidar operator certification within the 12 months prior to the scheduled end date of the course; and
- (3) hold active radar operator certification or be enrolled in a radar operator training course or a radar operator re-certification training course as outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0212.

Federal law enforcement personnel who do not meet these requirements shall be allowed to participate in a Lidar Operator Re-Certification Training Course at the discretion of the school director, but such personnel must have completed one introductory-level speed measurement instrument course that included instruction on the operation of lidar instruments. Courses that meet this requirement include those described in Paragraph (a) of this Rule and those described in 12 NCAC 09B .0242(a).

(e) If the Governor declares a State of Emergency pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.3(19), the Director of the Criminal Justice Standards Division shall allow additional time to complete a specific course delivery beyond the time limits set forth in Paragraphs (a) and (c) of this Rule when the Director determines that doing so is necessary based on consideration of the following factors:

- (1) Whether instruction has begun in the course or whether course initiation may be postponed;
- (2) The risk of harm to students that may be caused by continuation of the course;
- (3) Whether those enrolled in the course have been or will likely be called to action to help address the State of Emergency;
- (4) The specific need for the waiver; and
- (5) The degree of benefit to the public in allowing a break in instruction.

Notice of waivers granted pursuant to this Section shall be posted on the CJETS website, <https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/>. The waivers granted pursuant to this Section shall only apply to courses that began or were in progress during the effective period of the State of Emergency.

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;

Eff. May 1, 2004;

Amended Eff. November 1, 2007;

Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25, 2019;

Amended Eff. February 1, 2026; April 1, ~~2022~~ 2022;

Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.

12 NCAC 09B .0242 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

12 NCAC 09B .0242 CERTIFICATION AND RE-CERTIFICATION TRAINING FOR RADAR AND LIDAR OPERATORS

(a) The Radar/Lidar Operator Training Course for law enforcement officers shall be designed to provide the student with the skills and knowledge to perform the function of a radar and lidar operator. This course shall be for a period not to exceed four consecutive weeks, and shall consist of a minimum of 36 hours of instruction and shall include the following topic areas and minimum hours for each:

(1)	Course Orientation	0.5 Hours
(2)	Introduction to Radar/Lidar Training	0.5 Hours
(3)	Speed Offenses and Speed Enforcement	2 Hours
(4)	Basic Principles of Radar/Lidar Speed Measurement	6 Hours
(5)	Legal and Operational Considerations	5 Hours
(6)	Familiarization and Operation of Specific Radar and Lidar Instruments	12 Hours
(7)	Courtroom Preparation	4 Hours
(8)	Motor-Skill Performance Testing	5 Hours
(9)	Course Review	1 Hour

This course shall have a minimum ratio of one instructor per six students.

(b) Only those individuals currently certified as a law enforcement officer or appointed personnel of a law enforcement agency may be enrolled in the Radar/Lidar Operator Training Course. Sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and federal law enforcement personnel, including armed forces personnel, shall be allowed to participate in a Radar/Lidar Operator Training Course at the discretion of the school director without having enrolled in or having completed the basic law enforcement training course, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0205, and without being currently certified in a probationary status or holding general law enforcement certification.

(c) The Radar/Lidar Operator Re-Certification Training Course shall be designed to provide the law enforcement officer with the skills and knowledge to continue to proficiently perform the function of a radar and lidar operator. This course shall be presented within a period not to exceed one week and shall consist of a minimum of eight hours of instruction, including the following topic areas and minimum hours for each:

(1)	Course Orientation	0.5 Hours
(2)	Legal and Operational Considerations	2.5 Hours
(3)	Motor-Skill Performance Testing	5 Hours

This course shall have a minimum ratio of one instructor per six students.

(d) To be eligible for enrollment in the Radar/Lidar Operator Re-Certification Training Course, applicants shall meet the following requirements at the time of enrollment:

- (1) hold active radar operator certification or have previously held active radar operator certification within 12 months prior to the scheduled end date of the course; and

- 1 (2) hold active lidar operator certification or have previously held active lidar operator certification
2 within the 12 months prior to the scheduled end date of the course.

3 Federal law enforcement personnel who do not meet these requirements shall be allowed to participate in a Radar/Lidar
4 Operator Re-Certification Training Course at the discretion of the school director, but such personnel must have
5 completed one or more introductory level speed measurement instrument courses that included instruction on
6 operation of radar instruments and lidar instruments. Courses that meet this requirement include those described in
7 Paragraph (a) of this Rule, 12 NCAC 09B .0212(a), and 12 NCAC 09B .0238(a).

8 (e) If the Governor declares a State of Emergency pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.3(19), the Director of the Criminal Justice
9 Standards Division shall allow additional time to complete a specific course delivery beyond the time limits set forth
10 in Paragraphs (a) and (c) of this Rule when the Director determines that doing so is necessary based on consideration
11 of the following factors:

- 12 (1) Whether instruction has begun in the course or whether course initiation may be postponed;
13 (2) The risk of harm to students that may be caused by continuation of the course;
14 (3) Whether those enrolled in the course have been or will likely be called to action to help address the
15 State of Emergency;
16 (4) The specific need for the waiver; and
17 (5) The degree of benefit to the public in allowing a break in instruction.

18 Notice of waivers granted pursuant to this Section shall be posted on the CJETS website, [https://ncdoj.gov/law-](https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/)
19 enforcement-training/criminal-justice/. The waivers granted pursuant to this Section shall only apply to courses that
20 began or were in progress during the effective period of the State of Emergency.

21
22 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;*

23 *Eff. November 1, 2007;*

24 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
25 *2019;*

26 *Amended Eff. February 1, 2026; April 1, ~~2022~~ 2022;*

27 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

12 NCAC 09B .0304 is readopted with changes as published in 40:23 NCR 1862-1899 as follows:

12 NCAC 09B .0304 SPECIALIZED INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION

(a) The Commission shall issue a Specialized Instructor Certification to an applicant who has developed specific motor skills and abilities by virtue of special training and demonstrated experience in one or more of the following topical areas:

- (1) Compliance and Control Tactics;
- (2) First Responder;
- (3) Firearms;
- (4) Law Enforcement Driver Training;
- (5) Physical Fitness;
- (6) Restraint, Control and Defense Techniques (Department of Public Safety, Division of Juvenile ~~Justice~~; Justice and Delinquency Prevention);
- (7) Medical Emergencies (Department of Public Safety, Division of Juvenile ~~Justice~~; Justice and Delinquency Prevention);
- (8) Explosive and Hazardous Materials Emergencies; or
- (9) Standardized Field Sobriety Testing.

(b) To qualify for and maintain Specialized Instructor Certification in a topical areas area outlined in Subparagraph (a)(1) through (a)(8) of this Rule, an applicant shall possess a valid CPR Certification that includes cognitive and skills testing, through the American Red Cross, American Heart Association, American Safety and Health Institute, or National Safety Council.

(c) An applicant shall achieve a minimum score of ~~75~~ 80 percent on the comprehensive ~~written~~ state exam, as specified in Rule .0414 of this Subchapter, in order to qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the following topical areas:

- (1) Compliance and Control Tactics;
- (2) Firearms;
- (3) Law Enforcement Driver Training;
- (4) Physical Fitness; and
- (5) Explosive and Hazardous Materials Emergencies.

(d) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the Compliance and Control Tactics topical area, an applicant shall meet the following requirements:

- (1) Hold ~~General probationary or general Criminal Justice~~ Criminal Justice Instructor Certification, ~~either probationary status or full general instructor status~~, as specified in Rule .0303 of this Section;
- (2) Complete the Commission-approved specialized Compliance and Control Tactics instructor ~~course~~; course, as specified in Rule .0232 of this Subchapter; and
- (3) Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training coordinator.

(e) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the First Responder topical area, an applicant shall ~~satisfy~~
become certified through one of the following two options: methods:

(1) The first ~~option~~ method is:

(A) Hold CPR instructor certification through the American Red Cross, American Heart Association, American Safety and Health Institute, or National Safety Council;

(B)~~(A)~~ Hold, or have held, basic Emergency Medical Technician certification;

(C)~~(B)~~ Have completed the Department of Transportation's 40 hour EMT Instructor Course or equivalent within the last three years or hold a North Carolina Professional Educator's License, issued by the Department of Public Instruction; and

(D)~~(C)~~ Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training coordinator.

(2) The second ~~option~~ method is:

(A) Hold ~~General probationary or general Criminal Justice~~ Instructor Certification, ~~either probationary status or full general instructor status~~, as specified in Rule .0303 of this Section;

(B) Hold CPR instructor certification through the American Red Cross, American Heart Association, American Safety and Health Institute or National Safety Council;

(C)~~(B)~~ Hold, or have held, basic EMT certification; and

(D)~~(C)~~ Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training coordinator.

(f) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the Firearms topical area, an applicant shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Hold ~~General probationary or general Criminal Justice~~ Instructor Certification, ~~either probationary status or full general instructor status~~, as specified in Rule .0303 of this Section;

(2) Complete the instructor training course for Specialized Firearms Instructor Training Certification as specified in Rule .0209 of this Subchapter; and

(3) Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training coordinator.

(g) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the Law Enforcement Driver Training topical area, an applicant shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Hold ~~General probationary or general Criminal Justice~~ Instructor Certification, ~~either probationary status or full general instructor status~~, as specified in Rule .0303 of this Section;

(2) Complete the instructor training course for Specialized Driver Instructor Certification as specified in Rule .0227 of this Subchapter; and

(3) Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training coordinator.

1 (h) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the Physical Fitness topical area, an applicant shall become
2 certified through one of the following two methods:

3 (1) The first method is:

- 4 (A) hold ~~General probationary or general Criminal Justice~~ Instructor Certification, ~~either~~
5 ~~probationary status or full general instructor status~~, as specified in Rule .0303 of this
6 Section;
7 (B) complete the instructor training course required for Specialized Physical Fitness Instructor
8 Certification as specified in Rule .0233 of this Subchapter; and
9 (C) obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified School Director.

10 (2) The second method is:

- 11 (A) Complete the instructor training course required for Specialized Physical Fitness Instructor
12 Certification as specified in Rule .0233 of this Subchapter;
13 (B) obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified School director or in-service
14 training coordinator; and
15 (C) meet one of the following qualifications:
16 (i) hold a valid North Carolina Professional Educator's License, issued by the
17 Department of Public Instruction, and hold a baccalaureate degree in physical
18 ~~education, education~~; or
19 (ii) be presently instructing physical education topics in a community college,
20 college, or university and hold a baccalaureate degree in physical education.

21 (i) To qualify for Specialized Certification in the Standardized Field Sobriety Testing topical area, an applicant shall:

- 22 (1) Be certified by the North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Forensic Test for
23 Alcohol Branch, as a Standardized Field Sobriety ~~Instructor~~, Instructor; and
24 (2) Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training
25 coordinator.

26 (j) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the Department of Public Safety, Division of Juvenile Justice
27 Restraint, Control and Defense Techniques topical area, an applicant shall meet the following requirements:

- 28 (1) Hold ~~General probationary or general Criminal Justice~~ Instructor Certification, ~~either probationary~~
29 ~~status or full general instructor status~~, as specified in Rule .0303 of this Section;
30 (2) Complete the instructor training course for the Department of Public Safety, Division of Juvenile
31 Justice Restraints, Controls and Defensive Techniques Specialized Instructor Certification as
32 specified in Rule .0241 of this Subchapter; and
33 (3) Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director.

34 (k) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the Department of Public Safety, Division of Juvenile Justice
35 Medical Emergencies topical area, an applicant shall meet the following requirements:

- 36 (1) Have completed a ~~Commission-certified~~ Commission-accredited criminal justice ~~basic~~ instructor
37 training course or an equivalent instructor training course, pursuant to Rule .0302 of this Section,

utilizing the Instructional Systems Design model, an international model with applications in education, military training, and private enterprise; and

(2) Hold instructor certification in CPR and First Aid by the American Red Cross, American Heart Association, American Safety and Health Institute, or National Safety Council; and

(3)(2) Obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director.

(l) To qualify for Specialized Instructor Certification in the Explosive and Hazardous Materials Emergencies topical area, an applicant shall satisfy one of the following two options:

(1) The first option is:

(A) hold ~~General probationary or general Criminal Justice~~ Instructor Certification, ~~either probationary status or full general instructor status~~, as specified in Rule .0303 of this Section;

(B) Complete the instructor training course for Specialized Explosives and Hazardous Materials Instructor Certification as specified in Rule .0417 of this Subchapter; and

(C) obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training coordinator.

(2) The second option is:

(A) have completed the Fire Service Instructor Methodology Course or the equivalent utilizing the Instructional Systems Design model, an international model with applications in education, military training, and private enterprise;

(B) Complete the instructor training course for Specialized Explosives and Hazardous Materials Instructor Certification as specified in Rule .0417 of this Subchapter; and

(C) obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or in-service training coordinator.

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;

Eff. January 1, 1981;

Amended Eff. August 1, 2000; July 1, 1991; March 1, 1990; July 1, 1989; December 1, 1987;

Temporary Amendment Eff. January 1, 2001;

Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; June 1, 2013; April 1, 2009; August 1, 2006; January 1, 2006; December 1, 2004; August 1, 2002;

Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25, 2019;

Amended Eff. January 1, ~~2025~~-2025;

Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.

12 NCAC 09B .0308 is readopted with changes as published in 40:23 NCR 1862-1899 as follows:

**12 NCAC 09B .0308 RADAR INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION AND RE-CERTIFICATION
REQUIREMENTS**

(a) A person participating in a Commission-approved RADAR Operator or RADAR Instructor Training Course as an Instructor shall meet the following requirements for RADAR Instructor Certification:

(1) Initial Certification:

- (A) must be employed or appointed as a law enforcement officer by a state or local law enforcement agency or be a federal law enforcement officer;
- (B) if the applicant is a deputy sheriff, he/she must be in total compliance with the standards established by the North Carolina Sheriff's Education and Training Standards Commission;
- (C) must hold ~~Probationary or General~~ Criminal Justice Instructor Certification as required in 12 NCAC 09B .0302;
- (D) must hold current RADAR Operator Certification pursuant to 12 NCAC 09C .0308;
- (E) must complete the Commission-approved RADAR Instructor Training Course as required in 12 NCAC 09B .0210;
- (F) must obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director or agency executive officer or their designee; and
- (G) shall not instruct in any RADAR Instructor/Operator or RADAR Instructor/Operator Re-certification Courses until their Certification is received from the Commission.

(2) Re-certification:

- (A) must hold current ~~Probationary or General~~ Criminal Justice Instructor Certification as required in 12 NCAC 09B .0302;
- (B) must hold current Radar Operator Certification, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09C .0308;
- (C) must complete the Commission-approved RADAR Instructor Re-Certification Training Course, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0210;
- (D) must have been certified as a RADAR Instructor within the three years preceding the completion of the RADAR Instructor Re-Certification Course;
- (E) ~~has~~ must have participated in the classroom instruction and motor skill performance testing in the RADAR Operator Training Course, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0212, during the previous certification period; and
- (F) must obtain the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director, agency executive officer, or their designee.

(b) Those individuals who have previously held RADAR Instructor Certification and have not exceeded a six year time period from when his or her RADAR Instructor Certification expired are eligible to ~~reapply~~ apply for reissuance of the previously held RADAR Instructor Certification. An application for re-issuance shall contain documentation that the applicant:

- (1) holds current ~~Probationary or General~~ Criminal Justice Instructor Certification, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0302;
- (2) has completed the pre-qualification skills assessments;
- (3) ~~must complete~~ has completed the Commission-approved RADAR Instructor Re-Certification Training Course, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0210;
- (4) has passed the RADAR Instructor comprehensive state examination with a minimum score of 80; ~~75~~; and
- (5) has obtained the recommendation of a Commission-certified school director, agency executive or their designee.

(c) Applicants for re-issuance of the RADAR Instructor Certification shall have one opportunity to pass the prequalification skills assessment and the RADAR Instructor Comprehensive State Examination. Should an applicant not achieve a passing score on either the prequalification skills assessment or RADAR Instructor Comprehensive State Examination, the applicant shall complete the RADAR Operator and RADAR Instructor Course in its entirety.

(d) Applicants whose RADAR Instructor Certification is suspended or revoked shall not qualify for re-issuance.

(e) The term of a RADAR Instructor is three years from the date of issuance. All RADAR Instructors seeking re-certification shall complete the RADAR Instructor Re-certification Course, as outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0218, within 12 months of the expiration of the initial certification period. The 12-month period does not extend the RADAR Instructor Certification period.

Note: If Time Distance speed measuring instruments are reinstated for use at any point between years 2026 and 2036, individuals who currently hold a RADAR Instructor Certification and have previously held a Time/Distance Instructor Certification will be grandfathered and eligible to reinstate their Time/Distance Instructor Certification.

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;

Eff. November 1, 1981;

Readopted Eff. July 1, 1982;

Amended Eff. January 1, 2006; April 1, 1984;

Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25, 2019;

Amended Eff. October 1, ~~2025~~. 2025;

Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.

1 12 NCAC 09B .0408 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0408 COMPREHENSIVE STATE EXAMINATION–SMI OPERATOR**
4 **CERTIFICATION**

5 (a) Within 60 days of the conclusion of the classroom instruction portion of a school's offering of any speed measuring
6 instrument (SMI) operator course or re-certification course, the Commission shall administer a comprehensive state
7 examination to each student who has completed all of the required course work. The examination shall be an objective
8 test covering the topic areas contained in the certified course curriculum, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0212, .0238, and
9 .0242.

10 (b) A student of a RADAR, LIDAR, or RADAR/LIDAR operator training shall achieve a passing score on the
11 comprehensive state examination upon answering a minimum of 70 percent of the questions correctly. A student who
12 fails to achieve a passing score on a RADAR, LIDAR, or RADAR/LIDAR operator training comprehensive state
13 examination shall be eligible to request re-examination with the following conditions:

- 14 (1) The student must have achieved a minimum score of 60 percent on the initial examination;
15 (2) The student's request for re-examination shall be made in writing on the Commission's Examination
16 Request Form (F-23) pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0406(c), and shall be received by the Standards
17 Division within 15 days of the initial examination;
18 (3) The student shall have, within 30 days of the date of initial examination, only one opportunity for
19 re-examination; and
20 (4) The student must have completed each motor-skill and performance area of the course curriculum.

21 A student who fails to achieve the minimum passing score of 70 percent on the re-examination, or who fails to achieve
22 a minimum score of 60 percent on the initial examination, shall not be eligible for SMI operator certification until a
23 subsequent SMI operator training course offering and examination are completed by the student.

24 (c) A student of a RADAR operator re-certification, LIDAR operator re-certification, or RADAR/LIDAR operator
25 re-certification training course, pursuant to Paragraph (a) of this Rule, shall achieve a passing score on the
26 comprehensive state examination upon answering a minimum of 75 percent of the questions correctly. At the time a
27 student fails to achieve the minimum passing score, the student's SMI operator certifications shall be immediately
28 revoked, and the student shall not be eligible for re-certification until a subsequent SMI operator training course
29 offering and further examination are completed by the student.

30
31 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;*
32 *Eff. November 1, 1981;*
33 *Readopted Eff. July 1, 1982;*
34 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; November 1, 2007; May 1, 2004; April 1, 1999; December 1, 1987;*
35 *October 1, 1983; April 1, 1983;*
36 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
37 *2019;*

- 1 *Amended Eff. February 1, ~~2026~~ 2026.*
- 2 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09B .0409 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09B .0409 SATISFACTION OF TRAINING -- SMI OPERATORS**

4 (a) To satisfy the training requirements for operator certification, a trainee shall complete all of the following:

- 5 (1) achieve a minimum score of 70 percent correct answers on the comprehensive state examination as
6 outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0408;
- 7 (2) complete a Commission-approved course as prescribed under 12 NCAC 09B .0212(a), .0238(a), or
8 .0242(a) as evidenced by a completed Post Delivery Form (F-10B) pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0102;
- 9 (3) demonstrate proficiency in the motor-skill and performance subject areas to a certified Speed
10 Measurement Instrument (SMI) instructor as evidenced on documentation on the Commission's
11 SMI-1 Form for radar instruments and SMI-13 Form for lidar instruments, pursuant to 12 NCAC
12 09I .0106;
- 13 (4) present evidence showing completion of 12 hours of supervised field practice, as outlined in
14 Paragraph (c) of this Rule, within 90 days after completing a RADAR or RADAR/LIDAR operator
15 training course as prescribed in 12 NCAC 09B .0212, .0215, and .0242. Evidence of completion
16 shall consist of a completed SMI-15 Form pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0106. Individuals applying
17 for SMI operator certification may request an extension of up to 12 months for the 90-day
18 requirement to complete the 12 hours of supervised field practice. The Director shall grant the
19 extension request upon a showing of just cause which, for the purposes of this rule, includes
20 accident, illness, emergency, course cancellation, or other exceptional circumstance that prevents
21 the applicant from completing the required supervised field practice time;
- 22 (A) Individuals shall be exempt from the portions of the required supervised field practice, as
23 outlined in Subparagraph (c)(4) of this Rule, which they have completed at a prior date,
24 upon providing evidence of prior completion; and
- 25 (B) Evidence shall include a completed SMI-14 Form pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0106, and a
26 copy of the individual's prior SMI operator or instructor certification which lists the
27 instruments and modes which the officer is certified to operate. Division staff shall evaluate
28 the evidence of prior completion to determine which portions of the supervised field
29 practice have been completed at a prior date.

30 (b) Any trainee failing to achieve proficiency in the motor-skill area may request re-examination within 15 days of
31 the original examination. The trainee's request for re-examination shall consist of a completed F-23 Exam Admission
32 Form, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0102. A trainee shall have, within 30 days of the original examination, only one
33 opportunity for motor-skill re-examination and must complete each identified area of deficiency on the original motor-
34 skill examination. If the trainee fails to achieve the prescribed score on the examination, the trainee's active SMI
35 operator certifications shall be immediately revoked, and the trainee shall not be eligible for certification or re-
36 certification until a subsequent SMI operator training course offering is completed, as prescribed under 12 NCAC 09B
37 .0212(a), .0238(a), or .0242(a) and further examination is completed.

1 (c) The 12 hours of supervised field practice shall be completed as follows:

- 2 (1) The trainee must conduct the 12 hours of field practice using the radar instrument with the most
3 modes, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09C .0308(h), that the trainee is seeking certification to operate;
- 4 (2) The trainee shall operate the police vehicle and the radar instrument while being supervised by a
5 certified radar instructor or operator who is certified to operate the radar instrument used by the
6 trainee during the field practice;
- 7 (3) SMIs shall not be used to enforce speed violations by the trainee or by the supervising radar operator
8 or instructor during the 12 hours of field practice;
- 9 (4) The 12 hours of field practice shall be completed according to the following time requirements:
 - 10 (A) for trainees seeking certification with a dual antenna unit and with stationary, moving-
11 opposite direction, and moving-same direction modes: 120 minutes in each mode while
12 using the front antenna and 120 minutes in each mode while using the rear antenna;
 - 13 (B) for trainees seeking certification with a dual antenna unit and with stationary and moving-
14 opposite modes only: 180 minutes in each mode while using the front antenna and 180
15 minutes in each mode while using the rear antenna;
 - 16 (C) for trainees seeking certification with a dual antenna unit and with stationary mode only:
17 360 minutes in stationary mode while using the front antenna and 360 minutes in stationary
18 mode while using the rear antenna;
 - 19 (D) for trainees seeking certification with a single antenna unit and with stationary, moving-
20 opposite direction, and moving-same direction modes: 240 minutes in each mode while
21 using the front antenna;
 - 22 (E) for trainees seeking certification with a single antenna unit and with stationary and moving-
23 opposite modes only: 360 minutes in each mode while using the front antenna; or
 - 24 (F) for trainees seeking certification with a single antenna unit and with stationary mode only:
25 720 minutes in stationary mode while using the front antenna.

26 (d) To satisfy the training requirements for operator re-certification, an operator seeking re-certification shall:

- 27 (1) Achieve a score of 75 percent correct answers on the comprehensive state examination provided for
28 in 12 NCAC 09B .0408(c);
- 29 (2) Complete a Commission-approved course, prescribed under 12 NCAC 09B .0210(d), .0212(c),
30 .0237(d), .0238(c), or .0242(c);
- 31 (3) Satisfy all motor-skill requirements as required in Subparagraph (a)(3) of this Rule; and
- 32 (4) For individuals seeking supplemental certification or re-certification to operate instruments with
33 additional modes than those currently or previously certified to operate, complete 240 minutes of
34 supervised field practice for each additional mode. For dual antenna instruments, 120 of the 240
35 minutes must be completed using each antenna.

36
37 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;*

1 *Eff. November 1, 1981;*
2 *Readopted w/change Eff. July 1, 1982;*
3 *Amended Eff. November 1, 2007; May 1, 2004; April 1, 1999; December 1, 1987; August 1, 1984;*
4 *October 1, 1983; April 1, 1983;*
5 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
6 *2019;*
7 *Emergency Amendment Eff. May 5, 2020; Emergency Amendment Expired Eff. July 31, 2020;*
8 *Amended Eff. February 1, 2026; January 1, ~~2021~~ 2021;*
9 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

12 NCAC 09B .0414 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

12 NCAC 09B .0414 COMPREHENSIVE STATE EXAM – SPECIALIZED INSTRUCTOR TRAINING

(a) The Commission shall administer a comprehensive state examination within 60 days of the completed required course work for the following courses:

- (1) Specialized Firearms Instructor Training;
- (2) Specialized Driver Instructor Training;
- (3) Specialized Compliance and Control Tactics Instructor Training;
- (4) Specialized Physical Fitness Instructor Training;
- (5) Specialized Explosives and Hazardous Materials Emergencies Instructor Training;
- (6) ~~Radar~~ RADAR Instructor Training;
- (7) ~~Criminal Justice Time Distance/Speed Measurement Instrument (TD/SMI) Instructor Training;~~
- (8) ~~(7)~~ LIDAR Instructor Training;
- (9) ~~(8)~~ Re-Certification Training for ~~Radar~~ RADAR Instructors; and
- (10) ~~Re-Certification Training for TD/SMI Instructors; and~~
- (11) ~~(9)~~ Re-Certification Training for LIDAR Instructors.

(b) The examination shall be an objective test covering the topic areas contained in the ~~certified~~ approved course curriculum.

~~(c) The Commission's representative shall submit to the school director within five business days of the administration of the examination a report of the results of the test for each trainee examined.~~

~~(d)~~ (c) A trainee shall achieve a passing score on the comprehensive state examination if he or she achieves ~~75~~ 80 percent correct answers.

~~(e)~~ (d) A trainee who has achieved a minimum score of 70 percent but below the passing score of 80 percent on the comprehensive state examination is eligible for a re-examination of the comprehensive state examination.

(e) Trainees enrolled in a RADAR or LIDAR Instructor Re-Certification Course must achieve a minimum score of 80 percent on the comprehensive state examination. Those who do not meet this requirement are ineligible for a retest and must instead re-enroll and complete the next available Speed Measuring Instrument Operator and Instructor courses corresponding to the certification they are seeking.

~~(e)~~ (f) A trainee who fails to achieve a minimum score of ~~75~~ 70 percent on the Commission's comprehensive state examination shall enroll and complete a subsequent offering of the specialized instructor training course before further examination may be permitted.

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;

Eff. February 1, 1987;

Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; June 1, 2013; May 1, 2004; August 1, 2000; April 1, 1999; July 1, 1989;

1 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
2 *2019;*
3 *Amended Eff. January 1, ~~2025~~ 2025;*
4 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

12 NCAC 09C .0303 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

12 NCAC 09C .0303 PROBATIONARY CERTIFICATION

(a) Before a prospective criminal justice officer may be administered the oath of office, exercise the power of arrest, or commence active service as an officer, the employing agency shall have in its possession the person's Probationary Certification.

(b) The Commission shall certify as a probationary officer a person meeting the minimum standards for criminal justice employment, as specified in Rule .0101 of this Subchapter when the person's employing agency submits a Report of Appointment to the Standards Division. The Report of Appointment Form is located on the agency's website: [http://www.ncdoj.gov/getdoc/64d263a3-a598-4c45-9541-04ef088cf288/F-5A-\(DJJDP\)--6-11.aspx](http://www.ncdoj.gov/getdoc/64d263a3-a598-4c45-9541-04ef088cf288/F-5A-(DJJDP)--6-11.aspx). The process for issuing probationary certification is as follows:

(1) The Standards Division shall issue the person's Probationary Certification to the employing agency.

(2) If an oath is required, the official administering an oath of office to the person shall be presented the person's Probationary Certification prior to the swearing. The administering official shall sign and date the oath on the Probationary Certification. The employing agency shall return a copy of the signed Probationary Certification to the Standards Division within 10 days of the administration of the officer's oath.

(3) If no oath is required, the officer's department head shall endorse the Probationary Certification and enter the date on which the officer's service commenced, returning a copy of the certification to the Standards Division within 10 days of the commencement of the officer's service.

(c) The officer's Probationary Certification shall remain valid for ~~one year~~ 12 months from the date the certification is issued by the Standards Division unless sooner terminated by his or her agency. ~~agency for cause~~.

(d) Officers with Probationary Certification shall be eligible to request an extension of up to six months to complete the required training outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0235 or .0236, upon showing of just cause. For the purposes of this Rule, "just cause" includes an accident, illness, injury, emergency, or course cancellation that precluded the officer from fulfilling the training requirements. The request shall consist of a completed Form F-15, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0108, and shall be received at least five business days prior to the officer's scheduled Probationary Certification expiration.

~~(d)(e)~~ Before a prospective law enforcement officer may be issued a Probationary Certification, the prospective officer shall have completed the required basic training course stipulated in 12 NCAC 09B .0205(b).

~~(e)(f)~~ An applicant for certification who holds a valid Probationary Certification issued by the North Carolina Sheriffs' Education and Training Standards Commission shall be certified as a probationary law enforcement officer as specified under Paragraphs ~~(b), (c) and (d)~~ (b) through (c) of this Rule.

~~(f)(g)~~ Where the local governing authority declares the existence of a public emergency pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.22, the department head of the criminal justice agency of the jurisdiction may swear persons as law enforcement officers without first obtaining Probationary Certification for those officers. The employing agency shall obtain Probationary Certification for such emergency officers not more than 20 days after the administration of their oath of office.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;
Eff. January 1, 1981;
Amended Eff. August 1, 2015; November 1, 1993; March 1, 1992; July 1, 1989; October 1, 1985;
Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,
~~2019.~~ 2019;
Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.

1 12 NCAC 09C .0308 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09C .0308 SPEED MEASURING INSTRUMENT (SMI) OPERATORS CERTIFICATION**
4 **PROGRAM**

5 (a) Only those individuals currently certified as a law enforcement officer or appointed personnel of a law enforcement
6 agency who use a SMI for enforcement purposes shall hold certification from the Commission authorizing the officer
7 to operate the SMI. Certification in one or more categories reflects operational proficiency in the designated types of
8 approved equipment for which the trainee has been examined and tested.

9 (b) Standards Division staff shall issue SMI certification in the following categories:

10 (1) RADAR operator SMI certification or re-certification requiring completion of the training program
11 as required in 12 NCAC 09B .0210, .0212, .0218, or .0242;

12 (2) LIDAR SMI operator certification or re-certification requiring successful completion of the training
13 program as required in 12 NCAC 09B .0237, .0238, .0239, or .0242.

14 (c) The applicant shall meet the following requirements for SMI operator certification or re-certification within 90
15 days of completing a SMI course outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0212, .0238, or .0242:

16 (1) have completed course requirements as outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0212, .0238, or .0242;

17 (2) have passed the comprehensive state exam as prescribed in 12 NCAC 09B .0408;

18 (3) have completed the 12 hours of field practice training as outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0409; and

19 (4) meet one of the following requirements:

20 (A) hold active certification as a law enforcement officer; or

21 (B) be employed as a sheriff, deputy sheriff, or other sworn appointee with arrest authority
22 governed by the provisions of G.S. 17E and be in compliance with the employment and
23 training standards as established by the North Carolina Sheriffs' Education and Training
24 Standards Commission, pursuant to 12 NCAC 10B .0400.

25 (d) Certified SMI operators shall be notified by email via the North Carolina Justice Training and Certification portal
26 not less than 90 days prior to the expiration of certification. All applicants for re-certification shall complete a
27 Commission-approved re-certification course within 12 months from the expiration of the previous certification. This
28 prescribed 12 month period shall not extend the operator certification period beyond its specified expiration date.
29 When a re-certification course is successfully completed prior to the expiration of the previous certification, the new
30 certification shall be issued by the Criminal Justice Standards Division effective upon the receipt and review by
31 Division staff of the required documentation outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0409. Operator re-certification shall be issued
32 only to officers with active law enforcement certification.

33 (e) If re-certification is not obtained within the prescribed 12-month period, the officer is no longer eligible for re-
34 certification and must meet the requirements of initial operator certification, including completion of a RADAR,
35 LIDAR, or RADAR/LIDAR operator training course as outlined in 12 NCAC 09B .0212(a), 12 NCAC 09B .0238(a),
36 and 12 NCAC 09B .0242(a).

1 (f) RADAR operator certification is valid for a three-year period from the date of issue. Re-certification is also valid
2 for a three-year period from the date of issue, unless sooner terminated by the Commission.

3 (g) LIDAR operator certification and re-certification shall only be issued when the applicant holds active RADAR
4 operator certification. The expiration date of LIDAR operator certification and re-certification shall match the
5 expiration date of the applicant's RADAR operator certification.

6 (h) An individual's SMI operator certification shall apply only to the instruments and modes of operation with which
7 the individual has proven proficiency in the motor-skill and performance subject areas, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B
8 .0409(a)(3), during an SMI operator course pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0212, .0215, .0238, and .0242. Modes of
9 operation include: stationary, moving-same direction, and moving-opposite direction.

10
11 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;*

12 *Eff. November 1, 1981;*

13 *Readopted w/change Eff. July 1, 1982;*

14 *Temporary Amendment Eff. February 24, 1984, for a period of 120 days to expire on June 22, 1984;*

15 *Amended Eff. November 1, 2007; February 1, 2006; May 1, 2004; April 1, 1999; November 1,*
16 *1993; March 1, 1992; February 1, 1991; December 1, 1987;*

17 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
18 *2019;*

19 *Emergency Amendment Eff. May 5, 2020; Emergency Amendment Expired Eff. July 31, 2020;*

20 *Amended Eff. February 1, ~~2026~~ 2026;*

21 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09C .0601 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **SECTION .0600 - EQUIPMENT AND PROCEDURES**
4

5 **12 NCAC 09C .0601 APPROVED SPEED-MEASURING INSTRUMENTS**

6 (a) Prior to approval as a speed measuring instrument, the manufacturer of said instrument shall certify in writing to
7 the Criminal Justice Standards Division that said instrument meets or exceeds the applicable standards set out in the
8 "Model Performance Specifications for Police Traffic Radar Devices" as published by the National Highway Traffic
9 Safety Administration, United States Department of Transportation (as in effect July 1, 1982) which is hereby
10 incorporated by reference, and shall include any later amendments and editions of the incorporated material as
11 provided by G.S. 150B-21.6. Copies of this publication may be obtained at no cost from the Department of Justice
12 website: <https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/forms-and-publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi>.

13 (b) Prior to approval, speed measuring instruments shall be evaluated for law-enforcement use in North Carolina by
14 representatives from the North Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission and the North
15 Carolina Department of Public Safety, as outlined in "Appendix A: Approved List of Speed Measuring Instruments"
16 as published by the North Carolina Justice Academy, which is hereby incorporated by reference, and shall include any
17 later amendments and editions of the incorporated material as provided by G.S. 150B-21.6. Copies of this publication
18 may be obtained at no cost from the Department of Justice website: <https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/forms-and-publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi>. A summary of the findings shall be submitted in
19 writing to the Criminal Justice Standards Division's Speed Measurement Instrument Program Administrator.
20
21

22 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;*

23 *Eff. November 1, 1981;*

24 *Readopted w/change Eff. July 1, 1982;*

25 *Amended Eff. November 1, 2007; May 1, 2004; November 1, 1998; August 1, 1998; August 1, 1995;*

26 *January 1, 1995; November 1, 1993; February 1, 1991;*

27 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
28 *2019;*

29 *Amended Eff. February 1, ~~2026~~ 2026;*

30 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09C .0607 is readopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09C .0607 SPEED-MEASURING INSTRUMENT ANNUAL ACCURACY TESTS AND**
4 **DAILY OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES**

5 (a) All requirements for accuracy testing methods and operational procedures for speed measuring instruments used
6 by law enforcement officers and agencies to measure the speed of vehicles for enforcement of speed laws and
7 regulations shall conform with G.S. 8-50.2 and G.S. 17C-6.

8 (b) Each speed measuring instrument shall be tested for accuracy within a 12-month period prior to each use of the
9 instrument for speed enforcement purposes, as outlined in "Appendix B: Annual Tests for Accuracy Requirements"
10 published by the North Carolina Justice Academy, which is hereby incorporated by reference, and shall include any
11 later amendments and editions of the incorporated material as provided by G.S. 150B-21.6. Copies of this publication
12 may be obtained at no cost from the Department of Justice website: [https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-](https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/forms-and-publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi)
13 [training/criminal-justice/forms-and-publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi](https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/forms-and-publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi). The results of the tests shall be recorded on Form
14 SMI-9 for RADAR instruments and Form SMI-12 for LIDAR instruments, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0106.

15 (c) On a daily basis, speed measuring instruments must be calibrated and tested for accuracy by the certified SMI
16 operator prior to using the instrument for speed enforcement purposes. The tests shall be conducted according to the
17 recommendations of the instrument's manufacturer and include tuning fork tests for each of the instrument's modes of
18 operation.

19 (d) The daily operating procedures by SMI operators of each speed measuring instrument shall be in accordance with
20 the instrument's manufacturer recommendations and conform with G.S. 8-50.2. The daily operating procedures are
21 outlined in "Appendix C: Daily Tests for Accuracy Requirements & Operating Procedures" as published by the North
22 Carolina Justice Academy, which is hereby incorporated by reference, and shall include any later amendments and
23 editions of the incorporated material as provided by G.S. 150B-21.6. Copies of this publication may be obtained at no
24 cost from the Department of Justice website [https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/forms-and-](https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/forms-and-publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi)
25 [publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi](https://ncdoj.gov/law-enforcement-training/criminal-justice/forms-and-publications/#91-105-wpfd-smi).

26
27 *History Note: Authority G.S. 8-50.2; 17C-6;*

28 *Eff. August 1, 1998;*

29 *Amended Eff. May 1, 2004;*

30 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
31 *2019;*

32 *Amended Eff. February 1, ~~2026~~ 2026;*

33 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

12 NCAC 09G .0303 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

12 NCAC 09G .0303 PROBATIONARY CERTIFICATION

(a) A prospective employee may commence service as a correctional officer or probation/parole officer at the time of employment with the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction.

(b) Within 90 days of appointment to a position for which the Commission requires certification, the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction shall submit a completed Application for Certification Corrections Officer ~~(F-5A)~~ (Form F-5A), pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0109, to the Standards Division. ~~The Application for Certification Corrections Officer (F-5A) shall include the:~~

(1) ~~applicant's name, social security number, date of birth, driver's license number, and email;~~

(2) ~~position being applied for;~~

(3) ~~criminal offense record;~~

(4) ~~past disciplinary actions;~~

(5) ~~military service record;~~

(6) ~~education information; and~~

(7) ~~signature of agency head or authorized representative.~~

(c) The Commission shall certify as a probationary officer a person meeting the standards for certification when the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction submits a completed Application for Certification Corrections Officer (Form F-5A) to the Standards Division.

(d) The Standards Division shall issue the officer's Probationary Certification to the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction.

(e) The officer's Probationary Certification shall remain valid for 12 months ~~one year~~ from the date the certification is issued by the Standards Division unless sooner suspended or revoked pursuant to Rule .0503 of this Subchapter or the officer has attained General Certification.

(f) Officers with Probationary Certification shall be eligible to request an extension of up to six months to complete the required training, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09G .0411 and .0412, upon showing of just cause. For the purposes of this Rule, "just cause" includes an accident, illness, injury, emergency, or course cancellation that precluded the officer from fulfilling the training requirements. The request shall consist of a completed Form F-15, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0108, and shall be received at least five business days prior to the officer's scheduled Probationary Certification expiration.

~~(f)(g)~~ Pursuant to 12 NCAC 09G .0201, the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction shall maintain documentation of Probationary Certification in the officer's personnel records.

(h) Officers with Probationary Certification who have completed the required basic training and who, through promotional opportunities or non-disciplinary transfer, move into non-certified positions within the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction, may have their Probationary Certification reinstated without re-completion of the basic training requirements of 12 NCAC 09G .0410, .0411, or .0412, and shall complete a verification of employment standards of 12 NCAC 09G 0208 and .0209 (except 12 NCAC 09G .0208(5) and .0209(5)) on Form F-5C(DAC),

1 pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0109, when returning to a position requiring certification if they have maintained
2 employment within the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction. Upon reinstatement of their Probationary
3 Certification, the officer must complete the remainder of their 12-month probationary period prior to being eligible
4 for General Certification.

5
6 *History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6; 17C-10;*
7 *Temporary Adoption Eff. January 1, 2001;*
8 *Eff. August 1, 2002;*
9 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; August 1, 2004;*
10 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
11 *2019;*
12 *Amended Eff. May 1, ~~2025~~ 2025;*
13 *Readopted Eff. October 1, 2026.*

1 12 NCAC 09G .0304 is readopted with changes as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

2
3 **12 NCAC 09G .0304 GENERAL CERTIFICATION**

4 (a) The Commission shall grant an officer General Certification when an officer has completed the training
5 requirements of 12 NCAC 09G .0410, .0411, .0412, within the officer's probationary period and the officer has met
6 all requirements for General Certification as specified in Rules .0203, .0204, .0205, and .0303 of this Subchapter.

7 (b) General Certification is continuous from the date of issuance, so long as the certified officer remains employed as
8 a correctional officer or probation/parole officer with the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction, and the
9 certification has not been suspended or revoked pursuant to Rule .0503 of this Subchapter.

10 (c) Certified officers who, through promotional opportunities, or non-disciplinary transfer, move into non-certified
11 positions within the North Carolina Department of Adult Correction, may have their certification reinstated without
12 re-completion of the basic training requirements of 12 NCAC 09G .0410, .0411, or .0412, and ~~are exempted from~~
13 ~~reverification~~ shall complete a verification of employment standards of 12 NCAC 09G ~~.0205~~, .0208 (except 12 NCAC
14 09G ~~.0208(4))~~, .0208(5)) and .0209 (except 12 NCAC 09G ~~.0209(4))~~, .0209(5)) on Form F-5C (DAC), pursuant to 12
15 NCAC 09I .0109, when returning to a position requiring certification if they have maintained employment within the
16 North Carolina Department of Adult Correction.

17 (d) Documentation of General Certification shall be maintained with the officer's personnel records with the North
18 Carolina Department of Adult Correction and the Commission.

19 (e) Upon transfer of a certified officer from one type of certified corrections officer position to another, the North
20 Carolina Department of Adult Correction shall submit a Form F-D Notice of Transfer ~~Transfer~~, pursuant to 12 NCAC
21 09I .0108, to the Standards Division.

22 (1) Upon receipt of the Notice of Transfer, the Standards Division shall cancel the officer's current
23 General Certification and upon receipt of documentary evidence that the officer has met the requisite
24 standards for the specified type of corrections officer certification, the Commission shall issue
25 Probationary Certification reflecting the officer's new corrections position.

26 (2) The Commission shall grant an officer General Certification as the new type of corrections officer
27 when an officer has completed the training requirements of 12 NCAC 09G .0410, .0411, or .0412,
28 within the officer's probationary period and the officer has met all other requirements for General
29 Certification.

30
31 *History Note:* *Authority G.S. 17C-2; 17C-6; 17C-10;*
32 *Temporary Adoption Eff. January 1, 2001;*
33 *Eff. August 1, 2002;*
34 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; August 1, 2004;*
35 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. May 25,*
36 *2019;*
37 *Amended Eff. November 1, 2024; May 1, ~~2023~~, 2023;*

12 NCAC 09I .0108 is adopted as published in 40:23 NCR 1862-1899 as follows:

12 NCAC 09I .0108 **BASIC TRAINING FORMS – JUVENILE JUSTICE AND ADULT CORRECTION**

The following Commission-approved forms shall be used by agencies and Commission-accredited delivery sites for officers holding probationary certification, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09C .0303 and 09G .0303:

- (1) Form F-11, Report of Training Course Completion, shall include the following:
 - (a) student's name, academy ID number, and date of birth;
 - (b) name of employing agency;
 - (c) student's position title and date of appointment;
 - (d) course title, location, start date, end date, meeting times, and total hours;
 - (e) whether the student passed the course; and
 - (f) name of individual completing the form and date of form completion.
- (2) Form F-15, Request for Training Extension, shall include the following:
 - (a) date of request;
 - (b) employee's name, date of birth, last four of social security number, and position title;
 - (c) expiration date of probationary certification;
 - (d) scheduled basic training course type and course start and end dates;
 - (e) reason for employee not completing basic training;
 - (f) proposed start and end dates for subsequent basic training;
 - (g) employee's name, signature, and date signed;
 - (h) school director's name, signature, and date signed; and
 - (i) agency authorized representative's name, signature, and date signed.

History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;

Eff. October 1, 2026.

12 NCAC 09I .0109 is adopted as published in 40:18 NCR 1438-1458 as follows:

12 NCAC 09I .0109 CERTIFICATION FORMS – ADULT CORRECTION

The following Commission-approved forms shall be used during the application process for correctional officer or probation/parole officer certification:

- (1) Form F-5A (DAC), Adult Correction Report of Appointment and Application, shall include the following information about the applicant:
 - (a) type of certification applying for;
 - (b) name, social security number, previous names used, date of birth, home address, phone number, driver's license number and issuing state, and email address;
 - (c) prior certification history, including whether the applicant previously held a position requiring certification or licensure from any commission, board, or agency and whether any previous certification was suspended or revoked;
 - (d) whether the applicant has ever been denied employment for a position with a law enforcement agency, corrections agency, or security agency;
 - (e) names and types of relationships with any family member in prison, jail, or on probation or parole;
 - (f) history of illegal drug use;
 - (g) criminal history information, including offense, type of offense, disposition offense, date of offense and disposition, court docket number, county and state, and probation status for all offenses charged, expunged, and pending;
 - (h) explanation of any Domestic Violence Orders, Ex-Parte Domestic Violence Protection Orders, or any other protective orders issued against the applicant;
 - (i) military history, including date and type of last discharge, and the branch, type of discharge, and start and end dates of service for all periods of active duty;
 - (j) explanation for any type of military discharge other than honorable;
 - (k) report of appointment information to be completed by the agency authorized representative, including: applicant's position title, beacon number, effective date, education and degree information, date of fingerprinting, date DCI checks completed, date psychology screening conducted, name and license number of psychologist, date of negative drug test and name of lab, whether Forms F-1 and F-2 were completed (pursuant to .0105 of this Subchapter), date of physical exam, name and license number of examining medical practitioner;
 - (l) notarized signature of the applicant; and
 - (m) signature of agency authorized representative.
- (2) Form F-5C (DAC), Report of Reappointment/Reinstatement of Certification, shall include the following information about the applicant:

- 1 (a) type of certification applying for;
- 2 (b) type of application (transfer from a non-certified position or reappointment following
- 3 separation);
- 4 (c) name, social security number, previous names used, date of birth, home address, phone
- 5 number, driver's license number and issuing state, and email address;
- 6 (d) criminal history information, including offense, type of offense, disposition offense, date
- 7 of offense and disposition, court docket number, county and state, and probation status for
- 8 all offenses charged, expunged, and pending;
- 9 (e) explanation of any Domestic Violence Orders, Ex-Parte Domestic Violence Protection
- 10 Orders, or any other protective orders issued against the applicant;
- 11 (f) report of appointment information to be completed by the agency authorized
- 12 representative, including: position title and effective date, Beacon number, date of
- 13 fingerprinting, date DCI checks completed, date psychology screening conducted, name
- 14 and license number of psychologist, date of negative drug test and name of lab;
- 15 (g) notarized signature of the applicant; and
- 16 (h) signature of agency authorized representative.
- 17 (3) Form F-5D (DAC), Notice of Certification Transfer, shall include the following information about
- 18 the applicant:
- 19 (a) name, Beacon number, social security number, date of birth, email address, home address,
- 20 and phone number;
- 21 (b) current or previous certification type and certification type transferring to;
- 22 (c) position title and effective date of transfer;
- 23 (d) education and experience information;
- 24 (e) notarized signature of the applicant; and
- 25 (f) signature of the agency authorized representative.
- 26 (4) Form F-5E (DAC), Notice of Transfer to a Non-Certified Position, shall include the following
- 27 information about the transferring officer:
- 28 (a) name, date of birth, and last four of social security number;
- 29 (b) original certification date;
- 30 (c) date of transfer to non-certified position;
- 31 (d) title of non-certified position;
- 32 (e) type of last certification held, including whether it was probationary or general and whether
- 33 it was correctional officer certification or probation/parole officer certification;
- 34 (f) whether basic training was completed;
- 35 (g) whether the officer has been subject to a disciplinary transfer;
- 36 (h) name, title, and signature of agency head or authorized representative;

1 (5) Form F-38 (DAC), Authorization for Release of Information to North Carolina Criminal Justice
2 Education and Training Standards Commission and North Carolina Department of Adult Correction,
3 shall include the following:

4 (a) applicant's name, date of birth, driver's license number and issuing state, home address,
5 and phone number; and

6 (b) applicant's notarized signature.

7
8 History Note: Authority G.S. 8-50.2; 17C-6;
9 Eff. October 1, 2026.

12 NCAC 09I .0110 is adopted with changes as published in 40:23 NCR 1862-1899 as follows:

12 NCAC 09I .0110 **CERTIFICATION FORMS – JUVENILE JUSTICE**

The following are Commission-approved forms to be used by individuals certified as, or applicants for certification as, juvenile justice officers or juvenile court counselors:

(1) Form F-5A (JJ), Application for Certification - Juvenile Justice Officer & Juvenile Court Counselor,
shall include the following:

(a) name, phone number, and address of employing agency;

(b) applicant's name, previous names used, social security number, home address, date of birth, driver's license number and issuing state, email address, and phone number;

(c) position type (Juvenile Justice Officer or Juvenile Court Counselor);

(d) [hire date] position title and full-time or part-time status;

(e) verification that the applicant has completed certification requirements as set out in 12 NCAC 09B .0116 or .0117, including:

(i) education information, including highest level of education, name and location of high school, type of higher education degree earned, name and location of higher education institution, and how each type of education and/or degree was verified by the employing agency;

(ii) drug screening date, result, and name of laboratory;

(iii) date submitted fingerprints to State Bureau of Investigation and results shall be attached;

(iv) psychological screening date and the name and license number of the evaluating psychologist or psychiatrist;

(v) indication that medical forms, pursuant to .0105 of this Subchapter, have been completed, date of medical examination, and name and license number of examining medical professional;

(vi) indication that background investigation and associated forms, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0102, have been completed;

(vii) indication of whether the applicant has prior military experience and attached military records if applicable;

(viii) employment history of the applicant, supported by Form F-8, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0102, if applicable;

(ix) attached a completed Form [F-37;] F-36, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09I .0116; and

(x) applicant's arrest, criminal, probation, and Domestic Violence Protective Order history, supported by Form F-3, pursuant to 12 NCAC 09B .0102, if applicable;

(f) date completed Application for Verification of Expungement AOC-CR-280;

(g) signature of applicant and date signed; and

- 1 (h) name, title, and signature of executive officer or authorized representative of the employing
2 agency and date signed.
- 3 (2) Form F-5D (JJ), Application for Change in Juvenile Justice Certification, shall include the
4 following:
- 5 (a) Facility or district of employment;
6 (b) applicant name, academy ID number, social security number, date of birth, email address,
7 home address, and phone number;
8 (c) type of certification transferring from;
9 (d) type of certification transferring to;
10 (e) effective date of transfer;
11 (f) full-time or part-time status;
12 (g) education information, including how the applicant's high school education was verified
13 by the employing agency, how the applicant's college education was verified; type of
14 college degree earned; and institution name;
15 (h) notarized signature of the applicant; and
16 (i) name, title, and signature of executive officer or authorized representative of the employing
17 agency and date signed.
- 18 (3) Form F-19 (JJ), Notification of Personnel Record Change, shall include the following:
- 19 (a) employing agency name;
20 (b) individual's name on file with the Division, academy ID number, date of birth, and social
21 security number;
22 (c) for those notifying of a name change:
23 (i) new full name;
24 (ii) reason for name change; and
25 (iii) attached documentation, if applicable.
26 (d) for those notifying of a status change:
27 (i) current full-time or part-time status; and
28 (ii) status changing to;
29 (e) name, title, and signature of agency head and date signed.

31 History Note: Authority G.S. 17C-6;
32 Eff. October 1, 2026.